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MISSION

We are committed to our customers,
we work with exceptional human
capitalandwe representworldleaders
in the technology industry, to provide
the best solutions and services in our

markets.
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PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES

IT SERVICES MANAGED PRINT SERVICES (CMPS)
SYSTEM INTEGRATION MAINTENANCE

OUTSOURCING PREPAID PHONE & SOCIAL CARDS
TRAINING & EDUCATION DIGITALIZATION

CUSTOMER COMMUNICATION MANAGEMENT
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PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES

Managed Services

WE TAKE CARE OF YOUR BUSINESS!

IT SUPPORT HELP DESK REMOTE MANAGEMENT
SERVICES SERVICES SERVICES

A single point of End to end incidents Provides 24/7
responsibility for management, monitoring and
multivendor support includes scalable process networks management

Areas of expertise

DATA CENTER NETWORKING SECURITY COLLABORATION

PBS is bringing a new and more complete level of IT service to your business.



DIRECTOR'S
REPORT

DIRECTORS’' REPORT
The Directors of Productive Business Solutions Limited submit herewith their Annual Report and Audited Accounts
for the year ended December 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group ended the year with a profit before tax of US$ 134,000 and a net profit attributable to shareholders of
US$ 69,000. Details of these results, along with a comparison with the previous year's performance and the state
of affairs of the Company, are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis and the Financial Statements

which are included as part of the Report.

DIRECTORS
Nigel A. Clarke resigned from office on March 26, 2018. Edward J.L. Ince was appointed to the Board of Directors,
effective July 19, 2018. Blondell Walker was appointed to the Board of Directors, effective September 18, 2018.

CORPORATE SECRETARY
PwC Corporate Services Limited with address at Erin Court, Bishop's Court Hill, St. Michael, Barbados ceased to
hold office as Secretary. of Productive Business Solutions Limited and Ms. Lois A.K. Denny has been appointed as

Corporate Secretary.

AUDITORS
The Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers SRL, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. The Directors

recommend their re-appointment.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of Productive Business Solutions Limited exercises its responsibilities for the Financial Statements
included in this Report through its Audit Committee. The Audit Committee consists of non-executive Board members: Mrs.
Melanie Subratie, Chairperson, Ricardo Hutchinson, and Thomas Agnew; and executive Board members: Jose Misrahi and

Lois Denny. The independent auditors have full and free access to the Audit Committee.

EMPLOYEES

The Directors wish to express their appreciation to the employees for their loyal services throughout the year.
Submitted on behalf of the Board of Directors,

(&L

Paul B. Scott
CHAIRMAN



CORPORATE
INFORMATION

Full Corporate Name: Productive Business Solutions Limited

Registered Office: #42 Warrens Industrial Park, St. Michael, Barbados
Administrative Office: #42 Warrens Industrial Park, St. Michael, Barbados
Tel: 246-417-5600 | Fax: 246-421-8001

Law under which incorporated: Barbados
Incorporated: December 16, 2010
Fiscal Year End: December 31, 2018

Company Secretary: Lois Denny

ATTORNEYS Banco Industrial S.A. Centro Financiero, 72 Avenida
5-10 Zona 4
DunnCox Ciudad de Guatemala, Guatemala

48 Duke Street

Kingston, Jamaica

Clarke, Gittens, Farmer
Parker House, Wildey Business Park
Wildey Road, St. Michael, Barbados

Monica Ortega, Legal Counsel
23 Avenue, 31-01 Zona 5
Guatemala

BANKERS

National Commercial Bank Jamaica Ltd.

1-7 Knutsford Boulevard
Kingston 5, Jamaica

Citibank N.A. Jamaica
19 Hillcrest Avenue
Kingston 5, Jamaica

First Caribbean International Bank
Broad Street, Bridgetown Barbados

Banco BAC Credomatic
Calle 0, Avenidas 3y 5
Provincia de San Jose
San Jose, Costa Rica

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers.SRL
The Financial Services Centre
Bishop's Court Hill

P.O. Box 111, St. Michael
BB14004, Barbados



PBS El Salvador, building

CONTAC

INFORMATION

PBS Aruba

Caya G.F. Betico Croes 170
Oranjestad, Aruba

Tel: 297 582 5492

Fax: 297 583 2266
info.abw@grouppbs.com

PBS Barbados

Facey House 42 Warrens Industrial
Park

Warrens, St Michael, Barbados
Tel: 246 417 5600

Fax: 246 421 8001
info.bb@grouppbs.com

PBS Belize

99 Albert Street
Belize City, Belize
Tel: 501 227 0823/24

CBM Cayman Islands

PO Box 2326

49 Hospital Road

Grand Cayman KY1-1106,
Cayman lIslands
caymanhelpdesk@grouppbs.com

PBS Colombia

Avenida el Dorado #69-63

Oficina 202

Bogota, Colombia

Tel: 57 1 3557924

Web: pbscolombia.com
marketing.colombia@grouppbs.com

PBS Costa Rica

Km 5 Autopista Préspero Fernandez
San Rafael de Escazy,

San José, Costa Rica

Tel: 506 2506 3000 / 506 2506 3132
Fax: 506 2288 3486
cac.cr@grouppbs.com

PBS Curacao
Schottegatweg Oost 2
Willemstad, Curcao
Tel: 599 9733 1300
Fax: 599 9737 0911
info.cur@pbs.com

PBS Dominican Republic

Avenida Bolivar #1004,

Ensanche la Julia

Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic
Tel: 809 567 8231

Fax: 809 472 0915

PBS El Salvador

Final Blvd Santa Elena y Blvd. Orden
de Malta, Edificio Xerox Antiguo
Cuscatlan la Libertad, El Salvador
Tel: 503 2239 3000

Fax: 503 2239 3095
info.sv@grouppbs.com

PBS Guatemala

23 Avenida 31-01, Zona 5

Ciudad de Guatemala, Guatemala
Tel: 502 2420 9500

Fax: 502 2420 9536
servicioalcliente.gt@grouppbs.com

PBS Honduras

Tegucigalpa

Blvd Morazéan Edificio JDC, Segundo
Nivel, a la Par de Farmacity,
Tegucigalpa

Tel: 2232 0331 al 33
info.hn@grouppbs.com

PBS Jamaica

51 St Lucia Ave
Kingston 5, Jamaica
Tel: 876 926 5630-2
Fax: 876 929 5372
info.jm@grouppbs.com

PBS Nicaragua

Rotonda el Gleguense

400 mts al Sur, 100 mts al Oeste
Managua

Nicaragua

Tel: 505 2255 9020

Fax: 505 2255 9030
cac.ni@grouppbs.com

PBS Panama

Calle 53 E Marbella,

Edificio World Trade Center
Primer Piso

Apartado Postal 0832 00040,
WTC, Panama

Tel: 507 204 9950

Fax: 507 204 9902
contactenos.pa@grouppbs.com

PBS Suriname

Awaradam #24

Paramaribo, Suriname

Tel.: (597) 402 059

Email: info.sur@grouppbs.com

Global Product Alliance Inc. GPA
11411 NW 107th Street, Suite 24,
Miami FL 33178 USA.

Phone: 1(305) 477-2426.

Email: info@gpa-usa.com
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE POLICY

Corporate Governance remains a key area of focus for
PBS Group and is central to the Company’s strategic
objectives. The principles and the structure of our
policy ensure the highest standards of transparency,
oversight and independence, to serve the best
interest of all our stakeholders. The practices are
consistent with best practices and adhere to the
relevant legal and regulatory framework.

Our Corporate Governance Charter was established
in December 2010. The charter can be seen in more

detail on the Company’s website-www.grouppbs.com



SHAREHOLDINGS

SHAREHOLDERS'
PROFILE

TEN LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

Facey Group Limited 84,181,818
Portland Caribbean Fund Il L.P. 21,948,716
Portland Caribbean Fund Il Barbados L.P. 4,372,151
Pedro M. Paris Coronado 3,636,300

NCB Capital Markets (Cayman) Ltd. 2,911,894
Portland Fund Il Co-invest Partnership 951,860

Jose Misrahi 727,200
Courtney Sylvester 663,473

Jose Guillermo Rodriguez Perdomo 363,600
Jason Martin Corrigan 363,600
SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS

PERSONAL CONNECTED

Paul B. Scott = 84,181,818
Blondell Walker - -
Douglas Hewson - 27,272,727
Edward Ince - -
Jose Misrahi 727,200 =

Lois Denny - -
Melanie M. Subratie - 84,181,818
Patrick A.W. Scott - -
Pedro M. Paris Coronado 3,636,300 -
Ricardo Hutchinson - 27,272,727

Thomas Agnew - -



SHAREHOLDINGS

SHAREHOLDING OF EXECUTIVES

Pedro M. Paris Coronado 3,636,300
Jose Guillermo Rodriguez Perdomo 363,600
Jason Martin Corrigan 363,600
Marco Antonio Almendarez Cisneros 363,600
Christian Asdrubal Sanchez Mena 254,500
Leonardo Jesus Velasquez Foucaut 163,600
Michael Raphael Lewis 163,600
Elvin Howard Nash 142,700
Sergio Roberto Molina Barrios 127,200
Lucia Vielman Ruiz 90,900
Mario Estuardo Pons Espana 90,900
Lupiac Rodriguez Francisco Jose 90,900
Alvin A. Greene 9,000

Christopher John Derrell 1,800
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Checkpoint Screening

-3 ClearScan

Designed to detect explosives, firearms, drugs and other contraband. Our check-
point screening products incorporate a variety of proven technologies such as:
automated, conventional, and X-ray, image-free safe active millimeter wave, metal
detection; and energetic materials detection for trace explosives.
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CHAIRMAN'S
MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

2018 was a good year for Productive Business
Solutions Limited and its subsidiaries (PBS).
While the results on first glance may not reflect
such a generous description. On detailed
analysis, it is clear that PBS is transforming
and operationally, in 2018 it performed well.
Our EBITDA increased materially.



We reduced our operation costs by in excess of
US$3.2 million annually through many measures
from which the benefits will reflect in 2019.

In order to do this we spent in excess of US$1.9
million on redundancy charges during the 2018
year under review in addition to the start-up
losses we suffered in Colombia. We also faced
significant challenges in one of our main markets,
Nicaragua, where our sales were affected by the
ongoing civil unrest in that country. Operationally,
PBS is where it needs to be and we are confident
that 2019 will show further EBITDA growth.

Next year (2019) there will be a focus on the
charges below the EBITDA line, while we expect
continued growth, from strong sales growth
and expense control. PBS has significant annual
charges in excess of $8.7 million that are not
deductible due to the capital structure of the
company hence our significant tax charges

relative to our PBT.

This comes from over US$1.2 million of non-cash
amortization as well as our debt being structured
at our holding company level and not at the
operating subsidiaries. This structural issue
combined with the unexpected appreciation of
the Jamaican dollar has adversely affected our
PAT in 2018.1n 2019 we will work to correct these
issues which will lead to a direct improvement
in Profit After Taxes.

PBS has a talented team of 1,600 employees who
work on many existing projects, as well as the
development of new ones. As | look at our sales
funnel, we have never had such a large pipeline

of opportunities.

PBS ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Our region is investing in IT, whether it is for
security or operational improvement we believe

that the market will continue to grow. Your

company, PBS, is uniquely positioned to benefit

from this growth.

| want to take this opportunity to thank all of our
team at PBS for their hard work over the last year.
| always feel privileged to work with such great
people. In the first quarter our deputy chairman
Dr. Nigel Clarke resigned to serve the people
of Jamaica as a member of parliament. He
subsequently during the year was appointed to be
the Minister of Finance in Jamaica. | would like to
thank Dr. Clarke for his tremendous contribution
to the group. We can console ourselves in that

our loss will be Jamaica’s gain.

During the year we welcomed two new directors to
the board. EdwardInce, a Barbadian entrepreneur,
who | consider one of the Caribbean’s leading
businessmen. We are very grateful that he agreed
to work alongside us and serve on our Board of
Directors. We also welcomed Blondell Walker
to the Board of Directors. Blondell has been for
the past decade Musson Group’s IT director. An
individual whose hard work and perseverance has

been core to Musson'’s success over the years.

| would also like to thank all the members of the
Board of Directors for their invaluable input and
support. 2019 promises to be a very exciting

year for your company, PBS.

P.B. Scott
Chairman




COMPANY
DESCRIPTION

PBS Group was established in 2010 to be the holding company of
the Facey Group'’s business solution and technology distribution
businesses throughout the Caribbean and Central America. The
company has exclusive distribution rights for Xerox in Central
America, certain islands in the Caribbean, and Colombia (hon-
exclusive Xerox Agent) making it one of the largest Xerox

distributors in the Western Hemisphere.

The company maintains regional distribution agreements
with other world leading technology brands such as Cisco,
Oracle, HP and L3 in addition to specific country distribution
with brands such as NCR, Sony, HP, Dell, Lenovo, Datacard,
Verifone, and Kodak.

PBS distributes printing, computing, networking, storage,
imaging, security, point of sale equipment products, ATMs,
kiosks, cloud, supplies, paper. In addition it also provides,
software products, professional and systems integration services

to its clients across the region.

PBS has a large and diverse customer base of more than 12,000
accounts and more than 10,000 devices monitored through

Xerox CMPS (Channel Managed Print Services).



Hardware and Software

Engineered to Work Together

ORACLE

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING | SALES MANAGEMENT | SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE | INTEGRATION CLOUD SERVICE 23
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CEO'S
MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

| am honored to write my second letter to you as CEO
of a publicly listed company. A journey that started
two years ago and that has been both interesting
and demanding. | have had the privilege to continue
leading PBS.

As a company, we need to follow the path of the
printing and technology industries, as they undergo
transformations and evolve. We have no choice but
to change and adapt accordingly. To do so, we have
hired highly trained individuals and have retrained our
technical staff at the pace required by the market.

We play in an always innovating industry that today
follows trends such as “digital transformation, customer
experience, customer journey mapping, cloud, cyber
security, big data, production inkjet printing, etc.”.
That presents new and demanding opportunities for
operational excellence for us and for our customers.
| am convinced that we are working with the right
solutions, partners and technology providers to capture
and capitalize them.

Allow me to share some key results for 2018. For the
third consecutive year, PBS has recorded an increase in
revenues, which reflect both an accomplishment and
proof of our focus to deliver quality to our customers.
Our reputation as systems integrator has been
enhanced and our professional and services staff have
helped customers big and small, across a wide variety
of industries. This coupled with the leadership and
commitment of our team, have allowed us to achieve
record sales in some countries. Just as impressive, is
our discipline to better control our expenses without
having to reduce our committed staff.

Across our different markets, our performance is
undoubtedly skewed towards the second half of the
fiscal year, our EBITDA grew 36% due to cost reduction
actions and the net profit significantly improved from
the prior year to a positive position or $0.06 cents per
share. More details are provided in the Management &
Discussion Analysis section.

Our strategic partnership with Xerox continues to grow
with several promising opportunities lying ahead. In
spite of the fact that we have to protect the core market
business, we must remain watchful and, when the time
comes, be prepared to play with them in their adjacent
market business: Digital Services and Software and
their interest in new markets such as: 3D printing and
Labels and Packaging.

Together, we have a well-earned leadership in the high-
end office products, A3 Multifunctional Printers (MFPs),
Managed Print Services (CMPS), digital solutions for
the Graphic Commercial Industry and high-volume
inkjet presses, which we pioneer as early adopters in
the Central American region. Xerox understand that we
are always ready and prepared for new challenges.

On a higher note, Xerox Distributor Group (XDG)
has awarded our Honduras affiliate for the second
consecutive year with two top recognitions: “Net
promoter score”, given to the distributor with the
highest Customer Service rating and the “Social
Responsibility Award” for giving back to the Community
we serve, with the implementation of the Phase Il of the
rehab program for cerebral palsy.

Now, | would like to talk about our team. Whenever
possible, we have enhanced our leadership by
promoting from within our organization. We refreshed
some key positions in various countries (i.e. Panama,
Colombia, Guatemala, Nicaragua). We have also
strengthened our staff by hiring the best available
talent in the field.

Like any large organization, operating in several
different countries, there remain opportunities for
reducing our sub-optimization in processes, as well as
in business areas. We acknowledge they exist, know
where they are, and are fully aware that we will have
to address them in the coming months to maximize
shareholder value.

Challenges are everywhere in our territories. Our
Nicaraguan affiliate is experiencing the effects of
political distress, affecting its economic performance.
The country’s GDP decreased from 4.9% in 2017
to -3.8 % in 2018. PBS suffered a revenue decline of
US$5.7M YoY or 22%.

Colombia business environment present its own
characteristics; and starting our operation from

PBS ANNUAL REPORT 2018



ground up, being non-exclusive to Xerox, has
been a defiance test, but a motivation to continue
our investment to gain brand recognition and
customer awareness.

Nevertheless, | am pleased to report that we have
been winning customers faster than anyone selling
Xerox in that market. We are getting to a different
place and moving with a steady fast pace.

2019 will be an inflection point of our readiness to
look for strategic acquisitions and recruitment of
new partners that will become revenue generators,

creators of economies of scale, and enhance our
competitiveness, either with a particular brand or
in a specific country.

| want to take advantage of this opportunity to
welcome new manufacturers like Red Hat, Fortinet
and Dell, in our Caribbean operations, to broaden
and complete our portfolio.

| could not finish this letter without expressing
my ever-present gratitude to our customers, our
committed staff and to all of you, our stakeholders,
my deepest gratitude and appreciation for trusting
our company and its team.

PBS is managed with a long-term vision and we
see a rising horizon of opportunities. We remain
watchful to seize them. You can rest assured that
this team will be working around the clock to
make things happen and to continue evolving and
growing.

We strive to continue creating value for all of you.

Kind Regards,

Pedro M. Pdris C.
Chief Executive Officer

"This is a region where challenges do not
stop to test the faith of businessmen"

Ricardo Poma, President Grupo Poma







MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Financial Review
Revenues:

For the year ended December 31st, 2018, PBS recorded revenues of US$179.3 million which
reflects a 4.3% increase compared to the previous fiscal year. The revenue increase was in spite
of a decrease in sales in Nicaragua of $5.7 million due to the political unrest which started in
Q2 2018

Revenue by Product Line
(Expressed in United States Dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Year ended December 31st

2018 2017
S'000's S'000's % Change

Equipment

Xerox 17,275 19,586 -11.8%
Regionally Distributed Technology Brands * 22,517 18,318 22.9%
Other Equipment 26,079 20,777 25.5%
Total Equipment 65,871 58,681 12.3%
Paper/Supplies/Parts 45,510 44,969 1.2%
Maintenance and Services 46,668 50,328 -7.3%
Lease Income 20,354 16,908 20.4%
Total Recurring 112,532 112,205 0.3%
Telecom Equipment 891 1,020 -12.6%
Total Revenue 179,294 171,906 4.3%

*Regionally distributed Technology brands include Cisco, Oracle, and L3.

Revenue by Product Line:
Total Equipment Revenue increased 12.3% as compared to 2017 due to regionally distributed
technology brands and other equipment which combined were up 24.3%, partially offset by a

decrease in Xerox equipment.



MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

The increase in regionally distributed brands was primarily attributed to Cisco equipment sales,
which were up 51.5%. This increase is due to a deal with a regional multinational (Fortune 500)
company. Another material transaction was closed with DGII (Dominican Republic tax authority)
for a state-of-the-art upgrade and security solution. These two transactions positioned PBS as a
regional player in the networking segment in Central America and the Caribbean; exemplifying

our ability to service important recognized market leaders.

Xerox sales were down 11.8% reflecting primarily a decrease in revenue in Nicaragua and a
general trade practice in the market to lease equipment as opposed to purchasing outright.
Nicaragua revenues were severely impacted by the political unrest which led to a decrease of
Xerox Equipment sales by $2.2 million. The decrease in revenues associated with the market
shift to rentals was offset by the increase in lease income, which in 2018 was up 20.4% versus
2017. This shift also “ensures” revenue streams for years to come as customers have multi-year
contracts which guarantees that they will use Xerox branded supplies and parts in future years.
For 2018, Paper, Supplies and Parts revenues were up 1.2% versus prior year. This is in spite of

a decrease of $434K in Nicaragua.

Maintenance and Services revenues in 2018 were down 7.3% versus 2017; this was driven
primarily by lower variable printing in Nicaragua $1.4 million and a professional fees income
in Costa Rica $1 million in 2017 associated with a Banco Popular installation.

Lease income was up 20.4% from 2017 reflecting market shift. This shift also “ensures” revenue

streams in forward years to come



MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Revenue by Territory
PBS geographical diversification provides a natural hedge reducing currency risk, political risk
and market risk. The following table outlines the amount of revenue from external customers

broken down by location of our customer.

Revenue by Territory
(Expressed in United States Dollars)

Year Ended December 31st

2018 2017

Territory S'000's $'000's

Antilles 10,612 11,796
Barbados 1,273 8,599
Costa Rica 26,768 20,692
Dominican Republic 11,380 11,091
El Salvador 20,910 22,036
Guatemala 31,166 26,784
Honduras 9,078 7,967
Jamaica 14,115 12,2459
MNicaragua 20,223 25,949
Panama 15,3/6 14,097
USA 15 213
Other 12,376 10,433

Total 179,294 171,906




MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Cost and Expenses
The following is a summary of key financial ratios used to assess our performance:

Summary of Key Financial Ratios
(Expressed in Unitad States Dollars unless otherwise indicatad)

Year Ended December 31st

2018 2017

Better/

_ 5'000°s 5'000's (Worse)

Total Gross Margin 41.9% 42.7% -0.8 pts
SAG as a % of Revanue (1) (2) 31.0% 34.4% 3.4 pts
EBITDA (2) 520,748 $15.246 55,500
EBITDA Margin 11.6% 2.9% 2.7 pts

(1) Excludes depreciation and amortization of intangibles of 58,982K and

$8,470K for 2018 and 2017, respectively.
(2) Excludes loss on disposal of property in Antilles of $589K in 2017.

The gross margin for 2018 of 41.9% represents a decrease of 0.8 points compared to 2017. This de-
crease is primarily the effect of the change in mix of products and services with more equipment and less
services and supplies/parts which tends to generate higher margins.

Selling Administrative and General (SAG) expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased by 3.4% ver-
sus 2017 due to higher revenues, an improved operational efficiency and a tighter control of expenses
resulting in decreased occupancy costs ($810K), decreased legal and professional fees ($589K), de-
creased travel ($476K), and decreased bank charges ($353K).

Finance Costs

Finance costs in 2018 increased $252K primarily due to higher interest expenses $864K offset by lower
foreign exchange losses $612k. Higher interest expense primarily reflects the full year impact of pref-
erence share dividends in 2018 versus the partial year impact of preference share dividends and unse-
cured revolver interest in 2017, $325K. Interest expense was also affected by the higher amortization
of deferred finance costs in 2018, $213K.

Income Taxes
Income Taxes were $2.5 million in 2018 versus $2.0 million in 2017. Difference is attributable to mix of
profitability and tax per country as the local rate varies from 2.5% to 30% group wide.

Net Profit and Other Comprehensive Loss

Net profit was $134K in 2018 up from 2017 which had a loss of $4.7 million.

Total comprehensive loss in 2018 was $2.3 million loss versus a loss of $5.2 million in 2017. 2018 had
a currency translation loss of $2.5 million due to differences on the net assets of foreign subsidiaries.
These losses were primarily in Costa Rica $1 million, Guatemala $0.9 million and Nicaragua $0.4 million.



ConnectKey® _ Xerox®

Mobile and Cloud-ready Printers

Everyone can print, scan and share documents from their mobile devices.
A mobile device becomes a work hub away from the workplace with
Xerox® ConnectKey®Technology. Manage work from anywhere, via
laptop, tablet or smartphone. Download, Share, Print, Scan, Distribute
and even translate documents on the go.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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PAUL B. SCOTT

Chairman

Mr. P. B. Scott is the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) and principal shareholder of the Musson Group.
He joined the group in 1994 and became CEO in 2004.
In 2009 he was appointed Chairman of the Board. He
is responsible for the strategic direction, performance
and overal operations of the Musson Group and all its
subsidiaries, including Facey Group Limited, PBS Group,
Seprod, T. Geddes Grant Distributors Ltd., and General
Accident Insurance Company Ltd. among others. In
addition to his responsibilities at Musson, he serves on
several public boards and commisions. He is a Trustee of
the American International School of Jamaica. Currently
he is Chairman of the Development Bank of Jamaica (DBJ).
He is past President of the Private Sector Organization of
Jamaica.

PATRICK A.W. SCOTT

Director

Mr. Scott is a director of several companies within the
Musson Group. He has worked within the Facey Group for
a combined total of 40 years in various roles, including
Managing Director, a position he held for 16 years. Mr.
Scott attended Seneca College and Ryerson University in
Toronto, Canada.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PEDRO M. PARIS
CEO PBS Group

Mr. Paris has been with PBS since 2003, He has held several
management positions, in 2006 he was named COO for
Central America in 2006. Mr. Paris apointed CEO at the
end of 2009. He is responsible for the vision, strategy
and execution of the day-to-day operations. Mr. Paris
worked 18 years for IBM-GBM (an IBM alliance), where
he held several senior management positions across the
business. Mr. Paris studied Business Administration at the
Universidad Auténoma Centro America, Costa Rica.

MELANIE SUBRATIE

Director

Mrs. Subratie is Chairman and CEO of Stanley Motta
Ltd., Vice-Chairman of Musson (Ja) Ltd. and Director of
all its subsidiaries, Vice-Chairman of General Accident
Insurance Company Ltd., Eppley Ltd, and T Geddes
Grant Ltd. Chairman of E-Pins Ltd. and sits on the
executive of Seprod of Companies and all its subsidiary
boards. Chairman of Seprod Fundation, Musson
Fundation, Chairperson of Jamaica Girls Coding and
Chairman of Jamaica RISE Life Management and other
CSR organizations. She is also Fourth Vice-President of
the Jamaica Chamber of Commerce, and is the current
Chair of the Legislation, Regulation and Improvement
Commitee. She is a honored gradute of London School
of Economics.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JOSE MISRAHI
Director
Group CFO

Mr. Misrahi is a director of several companies within
the Facey Group. Prior to joining Facey in 2006, he was
Managing Director of a boutique Investment Bank from
2003 to 2006. He served as Vice President, Finance for
the Cisneros group of companies from 1992 to 2002, a
multinational with concentration in Media holdings. He
has also held other board positions outside of Facey. Mr.
Misrahi is a CPA and holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Accounting from the University of Miami.

THOMAS AGNEW

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Agnew is an entrepreneur specializing in building
content marketing, marketing technology and information
services businesses. He founded Brafton Inc. and a group
of subsidiary companies that are North America and
Australia’s leading content marketing entities. Brafton
Inc. has been listed among the 5,000 fastest growing
private companies four years in row. He co-founded
DeHavilland Information Services and Axonn Ltd in the
UK. Originally from the UK, he moved to the U.S.A. in
2008. Mr. Agnew holds a degree in Politics from the
University of Newcastle, UK.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DOUGLAS HEWSON

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hewson is a Managing Partner of Portland Private Equity
where he is a member of the Investment Committee, active
in transactions, and has primary responsibility for investor
relations. He has been the lead partner for investments in
InterEnergy Holdings Inc., IEH Panama, and Grupo IGA,
serving on the board of directors of each company and on
the related board committees. He is also on the board of
Merqueo S.A.S., and is Chairman of Portland JSX Limited,
a publicly listed company on the Jamaican stock exchange.

RICARDO HUTCHINSON

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hutchinson currently works with Portland Private
Equity (“PPE”) as Vice President — Investments, with
responsibility for leading investment transactions
throughout the region. He has more than 13 years
experience in the regional finance industry working with
several top financial institutions. Prior to joining PPE,
Ricardo held the role of Associate Director- Investment
Banking with a leading regional commercial bank. He
holds a Master of Science degree in Economics from the
University of the West Indies and is a CFA Charter holder.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EDWARD INCE

Non-Executive Director

Mr Ince is a Senior Partner/Co-Founder of Frontlight
Ventures, a regional investment and consulting firm.
He was Co-Founder and Managing Director of Prism
Services, a regional payments and operations outsourcing
company. He is a Non-Executive Director of Prism
Services Holdings, Republic Bank Ltd, Cave Shepherd,
Foster & Ince Cruise Services and the Barbados Sugar
Industry Ltd. He is a graduate of York University, Canada
and is a National Barbados Aubrey Collymore Scholarship
recipient for sciences

BLONDELL WALKER
Director
Group CIO

Blondell Walker has been part of the Musson Group of
Companies for over 20 years and is currently the ICT
Director, a position she has held since 2000. She is also
on the Board for T. Geddes Grant (Distributors) Limited
and Musson Jamaica Limited. She was instrumental in the
implementation of the Enterprise Resource Program (ERP)
application across the Musson Group of Companies. Mrs.
Walker studied Accounting and Systems Analysis at the
University of the West Indies, Institute of Management
and the Heriot Watt University of Edinburgh, Scotland.
She is the Chairman for the Western United Basic School.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

LOIS DENNY

Company Secretary

Ms. Denny joined Facey Barbados in 2007 as financial
controller. Prior to joining Facey Barbados, she was
financial controller for RX International. Ms. Denny
started her career with PWC Barbados as an auditor
and is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Barbados.
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DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE

DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE

P.B. Scott 4
Patrick Scott 4
Pedro M. Paris 4
Jose Misrahi 4
Ricardo Hutchinson 4
Douglas Hewson 2
Melanie Subratie 4
Lois Denny 4
Thomas Agnew 3

Edward Ince 1



REGIONAL
MANAGEMENT TEAM

ANDRES IBANEZ
Chief Financial Officer

Andres Ibanez joined the company in October 2010. His work experience includes
working with Fortune 500 companies such as Mobil Chemical and Federal Mogul. He
worked as Vice President of International Finance at Cinemark Holding, Inc. as well as
Chief Financial Officer for Puma Energy Latin America. He has a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Illinois at Urbana Champaign and a Bachelor of
Science in Mechanical Engineering from Vanderbilt University.

MAURICIO NARANJO HOEPKER
Chief Operating Officer, Central America & Dominican Republic

Mauricio Naranjo Hoepker has over 35 years experience in telecommunications and converged
networks in addition to Info-Communications industry consultations and auditing. He also
has over 12 years experience in planning and execution of telecommunications projects and
broadband initiatives in Latin America. Prior to PBS, his leadership roles included Director of
Strategy, Impetus Costa Rica; CEO, ITS Infocom S.A., and General Manager, Cisco Systems
Inc (North/South America & the Caribbean. He has an MBA in International Business from
National University of Costa Rica and a BSc in Electronics & Communications Engineering.

JOSE FERNANDO VERA
Chief Operating Officer, Colombia

Mr. José Fernando Vera PMP®, joined PBS Colombia as General Manager — COO in
November 2018. Mr. Vera has a degree in Business Administration with Enterprise
Marketing emphasis and more than 20 years of experience in the document & information
management business in companies like Xerox and Carvajal both in Colombia, covering
several positions over those years including pre-sales specialist, sales executive, product
manager, operations manager & director in charge of more than 100 employees in his
last position at Carvajal.

JASON CORRIGAN
Chief Operating Officer, Caribbean

Jason Corrigan has over 20 years experience in strategic and operational management in areas
like ICT, sales, marketing, logistics, product development, and business development. He has
worked for brands like O2 Ireland and Digicel gaining such accolades as the PSOJ's Private
Service Excellence Award (2015) and Corporate Partner of the Year (2016) from the Montego Bay
Chamber of Commerce. He has served on the boards of The Mona School of Business Management,
Business Process Industry Association of Jamaica and the Digicel Foundation. He studied business
management at Dublin Institute of Technology and has an EMBA from Wharton School of Business.




REGIONAL EXECUTIVE TEAM

MARIO PONS
Regional Professional Services Director
Mario Pons has been a key player for the Inkjet strategy the group has developed in
Central America and has helped various PBS organizations in the development of high
impact projects such as the printing of Electoral Ballots. He has also been integral in
the relationship with global partners, Entrust Datacard and Gemalto, for National ID
projects in Guatemala, Jamaica and Costa Rica. He started working in Xerox Guatemala
in 1994 and has developed his career within Xerox and PBS holding several positions
in Sales, Service and Professional Services. He has a BsC in Computer Science from
Louisiana State University, and a Diploma in Business Administration from Tayasal
Business School.

LESDER RAMIREZ

Xerox Operation Regional & Shared Services Manager

Lesder Ramirez joined the company in July 2009. Mr. Ramirez is passionate, highly motivated
and proven to deliver results, under his care is the Xerox relationship and the internal Xerox
business development. Mr. Ramirez has served in PBS during the last years in Finance as a
Financial Manager in different countries in Central America and Caribbean, more recently
created the Shared Services Center that provides strong support to a diversity areas and
of operations. His professional career includes working with top world class companies like
Philip Morris and America Movil. He has a Bachelor of Business Administration.

LUCIA VIELMAN

Group Corporate Treasurer

Lucia Vielman has been Corporate Treasurer of PBS since the year 2009. After
obtaining a Cum Laude Business Administration degree from Universidad Francisco
Marroquin in Guatemala, she began her professional career as a banker. In 1998, she
was hired by Banco del Agro, which then became Banco Agromercantil after merging
with Banco Agricola Mercantil in the year 2000. After the merger, she was appointed
deputy manager of Mercom Bank, which is the financial group’s offshore bank. Finally,
in 1994 was promoted to General Manager, a position she held until late 2007.

LEONARDO VELASQUEZ
Information Technology/Networking Director

Leonardo Velasquez has been working with PBS since 2015. He oversees the sales
relationship with vendors and distributors, such as: Cisco, Fortinet, HP, Dell, Tripplite,
TechData, Intcomex, IngramMicro. Before PBS, he worked as a Regional Partner
Account Manager at Cisco Systems for 6 years and has amassed a total of 25 years in
the IT sector. He has an MBA in Enterprise Administration and is an Electronic Engineer.




REGIONAL SUPPORT TEAM
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OCTAVIO ANDRADE SERGIO MOLINA ESTEBAN CORRALES
Regional Service Manager Regional Post Sales Manager Regional Used Equipment

Manager

¢

WALTER SOLANO ROSSANA ARRIOLA MARIA RAMIREZ
Chief Information Officer Executive Assistant GPA General Manager
Global Products Alliance Inc

NADIA NIVENS JARRETT VYNNIE MILA
Regional Marketing Manager Regional SMB Manager



MANAGEMENT TEAM

MANAGEMENT TEAM

CHRISTIAN SANCHEZ FRANCISCO LUPIAC JUAN LORA ANTHONY HOLLANDER

General Manager, General Manager, General Manager, General Manager, Aruba,
Costa Rica Honduras Dominican Republic Curacao

GUILLERMO RODRIGUEZ MICHAEL LEWIS MARCO ALMENDAREZ DIANA WALKER
Senior General Manager, General Manager, Senior General Manager, General Manager,
El Salvador Jamaica Nicaragua Panama

ELVIN NASH LAURA JOHNSTON DANNY GONGORA MAURICIO DUARTE
General Manager, Country Manager, General Manager, COO,
Barbados, OECC, Suriname Cayman Islands Belize Guatemala



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLICIES & PROCEDURES

PBS' main objetive is to provide the highest quality of service to our partners and clients at all times while
upholding our values of “trust, integrity and respect for all”. This objective can be best achieved if there is
harmony, understanding and confidence among all who are involved in the operations of the company and as
such, good relations between staff and management will establish mutual trust, respect and cooperation. This
objective can be further achieved when individuals are given all possible encouragement, opportunity and,
where appropriate, the incentive to make their maximum contribution to the success of the company, while
developing their personal skills and abilities.

The human resource policies at PBS are designed to provide employees and contractors of PBS with clear advice
and guidelines and to create a culture where issues are dealt with in a consistently fair and equitable manner.

All members of staff and contractors are bound and expected to comply with the policies and guidelines
governing their respective department.



These policies exist:

* To foster, develop and nurture the highest level of professionalism among all levels of staff.
* To ensure that all matters affecting staff relationship are fully and frankly explained and understood.

e To ensure that each staff member knows the requirements of his/her job and is familiar with the proper
channels of communication.

* To foster a spirit of cooperation and high morale.
e To establish a functional grievance procedural system.

* To ensure that persons are employed for the work which best suits them and the organization, with the
objective of enabling them to make the most effective contribution to the organization and allowing them
to derive a sense of personal achievement.

The sustained development and success of PBS is highly dependent on the concerted efforts of highly talented
and team-oriented individuals. As a result, Human Resource Management is of utmost importance. PBS aims
to be a fair and caring employer that embraces and applies human resource management best practices. The
documentation and distribution of Human Resources Policies and Procedures are important steps in the creation
of a transparent and nurturing environment.



Xerox"®

Xerox®App Gallery

Xerox® App Gallery Adapts to Evolving Needs
The industry’s most flexible productivity functions and apps

Your business needs change over time. That’s why ConnectKey features an ever-evolving gallery
of apps that lets you add, delete, or swap tools in your own custom app gallery.

Easily connect mobile workers to Xerox® ConnectKey® Technology-enabled devices. Use the
Xerox® App Gallery to download new apps — scan and convert paper into the format you need
with CapturePoint; translate documents via MFP, PC, or smart device with Easy Translator; share
patient information securely with the healthcare app.




xXerox®

DocuShare®

Work is going mobile — now your content goes with you

[ EE R RN RN RN

DocuShare is one of the most flexible, easy-to-use content management platforms on the market today. It manages a
wide range digital content and automates your business processes. Mobile access to your business documents, and to
Internet-published documents and records, is increasingly critical. DocuShare mobile capabilities let you capture,
manage, retrieve and distribute content from a mobile device, using secure protocols, no matter where work takes you.









ransformation-_and innovation
the kemrs helping to shape
ting and sales activities across
. PBS prides itself in.being able
to create and sustai winning Iéng term
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and recognition from partners. We -secutd

PBS: WE MAKE THINGS HAPPEN



major local and regional contracts and bids,
increasing our footprint and market share
across the Caribbean , Central America and
Colombia. We engaged customers with
targeted stakeholder seminars, expos, and
advertisements.

Improving the conditions of the people and
communities in which we operate is critical

LI

in our strategic plans, therefore, social
responsibility activities also remained a
major focus for 2018. Our highlights for
the year includes milestone achievements
in social responsability and spearheading
a campaign to promote the use of paper

instead of plastic.

REGION







COLOMBIA

Industry Events, Cali

PBS Colombia was welcomed as the distributor for Xerox at the annual meeting of the Graphic Industry
Association (ANDIGRAF). PBS in partnership with Xerox and software manufacturer Aleyant executed
a printing industry seminar focused on increasing business growth and profitability through automation.

Bogoté was the first city in Colombia to host “Educate to Grow”, an event oriented for the Graphic Arts community
that was later extended to other cities. The event covers the use of G7 methodology in hybrid environments
(Offset, wide format, digital presses), the market tendencies, and Color management. The envent closed with a
demonstration of various Xerox products (Versalink® C9000, Color C70® and Versant 180®).




COSTA RICA

PBS Costa Rica had a huge presence at the 2018 Expo Grafica (Graphic Expo) to showcase the new
Xerox Iridesse printer.

COSTA RICA
Social Security (CCSS)
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PBS Costa Rica team delivered the opening remarks at the Costa Rican Social Security’s (CCSS) Oracle
Day where our focus was the benefits that can be obtained from big data and the potential impact this
can have on the national health system.



JAMAICA

Cisco Cyber Security Seminar

PBS Jamaica and Cisco partnered to execute a breakfast seminar on Cyber Security discussing how to use
technology to solve business issues. This event was intended for IT managers in government and private
organizations. The seminar featured presentations from Cisco’s Senior Systems Engineer as well as Security
Specialist Pablo Herrera Vargas.

BELIZE

PBS Belize launched an alliance with Fortinet at a seminar where IT industry
stakeholders learned about the new role of security in their offices, with the presence
of specialists from Fortinet and PBS.




AWARDS &
RECOGNITIONS

Xerox's awards for 2018 will be
delivered at the Xerox Global Partner
event to be held in Atlanta,Ga.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 in early May 2019.
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CISCO PUBLIC SECTOR
PARTNER OF THE YEAR

Cisco Systems Inc. is the global leader in networking for the Internet.
Partner Summit is Cisco’s annual event to bring technology and customers
together to create value and new opportunities. Cisco also uses it as
an opportunity to recognize their top-performing partners for their
outstanding achievements. PBS was awarded the 'Public Sector Partner of
the Year' for the Latin America Region in November 2018. This award was
a result of a Country Transformation project in the area that Cisco calls
CANSAC (Central America, North of South America and the Caribbean).
Pictured is Leonardo Velasquez, Regional Director of IT and Mauricio
Naranjo, COO of PBS received this award.



HONDURAS

Xerox
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PBS Honduras is the winner for |
second consecutive year the NET r
PROMOTER SCORE Award. This '
distinction is given for 2018 ex-
cellence in Customer Satisfac-.-'

tion.

Xerox's awards for 2018 will be delivered at the Xerox Global Partner event to be held in Atlanta,Ga. in early May 2019.

GUATEMALA

Partner First

Platinum

HP awarded PBS Guatemala with the Platinum
Partner plaque for its 2018 achievements.




NICARAGUA
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TITANIUM

DELL EMC Titanium is the
highest level that can be
obtained in the program. PBS
became the only Titanium
partner in Nicaragua.

BARBADOS
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PBS Barbados received Silver Partner status from Fortinet in October 2018.
Fortinet is a leader in the development of cybersecurity solutions including firewalls, Wifi Access Points,
Network Switches Anti-virus, Intrusion Prevention and Endpoint security solutions, among others.







DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

R

PBS was selected Cisco Advance
Service Provider in  Dominican
Republic to deliver equipment and
services for the upgrade of the
DGIl datacenter. This institution
will implement a network of SDN
(Software Defined Nertworking), ACI
(Application Centric Infrastructure)
of Cisco in conjunction with Security
and Networking.

- a

e 1

Ministerio de Hacienda (MHCP), awarded PBS, the contract to design, install and deploy DELL EMC
Datacontainer as a security backup. These Datacontainers include, DELL EMC Storage, Servers and
Switches , UPS and Cabinets Tripplite, security cameras and fire detector and Biometric protection
Systems.

)



GUATEMALA
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The Ministry of Education of Guatemala awarded the acquisition of 16,000 Lenovo computers for primary

schools to PBS. This project will help develop 1,000 learning technology laboratories across a country, with
a significant social impact

COSTA RICA

COSTA RICA
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CCSS awarded a contract to implement Oracle Big Data solutions and servides at the Caja Costarricense
del Seguro Social (CCSS) to deploy knowledge transfer, and innovation through the application of advance
techniques for analysis and discovery. As a first use case, this solution will allow the institution to save costs
(estimated US$2 M per year) related to its human resources. (Control of overtime, staff disabilities and absences).

And second case is Detection of Evasion in Social Security, this is estimated to improve the collection by at
least US$10 M per year and maybe more.




HONDURAS
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XEROX returned to banking sector in 2018 in Honduras. For more than 15 years PBS had no presence
in the banking system, and this year we return to one of the main bank in Honduras, Banco Davivienda.
Installation of 178 A3 and A4 machines monitored by Xerox Managed Print Services and distributed
across the country in Davivienda allow PBS to reposition itself in the market, the expansion of human
resource in the main cities of the country and prove that we are the fastest growing printing company
in the two years in Honduras

BARBADOS

| q
eVELo
> ‘04;

= | (il
PBS Barbados achieved a competitive win by replacing 31 HP, Brother and Cannon Multi-Function
Printers in December. The opportunity included an assessment of the Bank fleet and the final report
allowed them to improve from 42 to 30 devices that include Color and Black and White machines. The

offer from PBS included Xerox hardware, Papercut Software, and Managed Print Services to monitor
the status and functioning of each device.



COLOMBIA

PBS Colombia sold into its first official customer, Dalama Printers who were looking to expand their
portfolio into digital printing. Dalama ultimately invested in 3 of our latest Xerox and Epson models
available to meet the different needs of the local market. Dalama is located at the hart of El Ricarte in
Bogota, a one of a kind area where many small printers are located and competition, service and prices
are nextdoor.

JAMAICA

NATIONAL
COMMERCIAL
BANK

JAMAICA LIMITED

NCB financial group in Jamaica installed Xerox printers in all branches island wide. A total of 184
Xerox Altalink and Versalink printers were distributed across 46 locations, including their headquarters
and branches. The solution includes Xerox hardware, PaperCut Print Management Software, and all
machines are monitored with the Managed Print Services tool-set offered by Xerox (CMPS), to provide
proactive service and supplies support to the Bank.




PANAMA

GUATEMALA

Institute of National Aqueducts and
Sewers (IDAAN) provides the water

distribution service throughout the
Republic of Panama. IDAAN wanted to
provide better statistical information

of the users' consumption and process
each production cycle within 24 hours.
PBS with the support of Quadient
provided variable printing services
of over 1.8 million pages of account
statements. We also provided notable
improvements including the ability to
provide Variable Advertising within
the account statement. Our Xerox
Impika Compact was key.
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Banco Industrial belongs to one the
largest financial groups in Central
America and it is Guatemala’s
biggest bank. PBS was awarded a 48
months contract to print statements
and generate PDF’s for all the lines
of business of the local group.
Printing of statements is deployed in
full color documents printed in the
Inkjet production Impika Compact
printer, and PDF’s are generated
using Quadient state-of-the-art
workflow software.

The  combination of  these
technologies allows better
communication between Banco
Industrial and its clients.




quadient” 8.
Inspire p

Make the move to
Omni-channel

“With Quadient Inspire, we have leading edge capabilities in terms of how we present customer data and deliver
content to our customers. Moving some of the large volume to e-delivery and with a focus on generating print
ready output to reduce print vendor programming, will also significantly reduce our costs,”

—Randi Gordon, director, customer communications management, Pacific Life.




EL SALVADOR

2019 Presidential Election ballots

PROFESSIOMAL
SERVICES TRIBUNAL JUPREMO ELECTORAL

PBS El Salvador won the bid for the production of the
electoral ballots for the 2019 Presidential Election.
This represents a printing volume of 5,734,800 full
color letter-size duplex using the IMPIKA, Xerox's
high-volume inkjet equipment, and Quadient
software. This was a historic occasion as it was the
first time the country printed ballots using a modern
digital system as opposed to the traditional offset
printing. The project also included the printing of the
voters list and other material relating to the elections.
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SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY




HONDURAS

Park adapted for children with disabilities

Physical activities that involve people with disabilities require different
modifications and adaptations. Many times they cannot enjoy activities
because there is not adequate space or materials. PBS Honduras
recognized this issue and found a small recreational area on the
PREPACE (Cerebral Palsy Rehabilitation Programme) property which

we decided to restore to create "The first Park adapted for children
with disabilities in Honduras”.

Over four months, members of PBS converted the area from an open

space to an optimal space for the physical and cognitive development
of children with disabilities which launched December 12
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Xerox's awards for delivered at
the Xerox Global Partherevent to be held in
Atlanta,Ga. in early May 2019.




EL SALVADOR

Plogging

PBS El Salvador, led by team member and regional event coordinator, ElImer Campos executed El Salvador’s
first “Plogging” event. Plogging is an activity that involves running, collecting garbage and depositing it in
nearby bins or provided receptacles. This promoted both physical and environmental health and was supported
by hundreds of individuals and companies.

mgi

Plogg

CAYMAN

Alzheimers
Support

PBS staff members
donated to the Alzheimer
Association of the Cayman
Islands and showed their
support by wearing purple
in honour of persons living
with this diagnosis.




ANTILLES
AJMG Foundation

The AJMG Foundation is a non-profit organization that cares for children from low income families. The PBS
team came together to help with the remodeling and maintenance of their main building.

BARBADOS

SFO

Barbados
Cancer Society — Walk
for a Cure

Members of the PBS Team proudly participated in
the annual "Walk for a Cure” 5k event hosted by the
Barbados Cancer Society. This event was staged to
help promote cancer awareness and raise funds to
support cancer survivors.




EL SALVADOR

Convert Campaign: Promoting the use of paper

PBS adopted an active and responsible position regarding the care of the environment, offering our customers
products and solutions with ecological certifications that contribute to their sustainability goals. We launched a
new initiative to promote the use of less plastic and more paper to raise awareness about a more responsible use
of materials. This will help reduce the consumption of single-use plastics and contribute to conservation efforts.

Throughout the year we participate in different events to raise awareness of this initiative which received a very

positive response among clients from different segments.
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GUATEMALA

Medical Assistance Clinic

PBS Guatemala deployed primary medical
assistance clinic to contribute with health
care of its employees.

The clinic is attended by a certified nurse
and is well equipped to cover a wide variety
of incidents. Its services include incident
diagnosis, prescription issuance, medicine
and ambulance service.

Employees morale has increased, while the
clinic is providing a first class service.
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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Productive Business Solutions Limited
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Qur opinion

In sur npinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the
consolidated financial position of Productive Business Solutions Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Groop™) as at 31 December 2018, and their consolidated financial performance
and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise;

the consolidated slatement of financial posilion as at 31 December 2018;

the eansolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting

policies.

& & & & B

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Internativnal Standards on Auditing (18As). Our
responsibilibies under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit

of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We beljeve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (LESBA Code). We have folfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoapers SRL, The Financial Services Centre, Mshop's Court Hill, P.O. Bax 111, 5t. Michael,
BBiqo004, Borbados, West Indies
T: +246-826-6700, F: +246-436-1275, twuny. pute.com,/bh
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Howw' osnng st anddpe ssed the Key audil
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achieve the targeted growth rales, the assessment of the
carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets involees
significant judgement Increasiog the risk of estimation
uncertainty in relation to forecasting future cash flows
and is sensitive to growth rates and discount rates
applied ta the foture cash flows, and as such is an area
of focus.

Management perfformed an impairment assessment for
cach CGU.

¥ Taxrates - we compared the tex rabe to the
antity’s effective tax rate;

# Capital expenditures - we compared capital
expenditures 1o historical amounts and discussed
with management their capital expenditure
plans;

» Working capital reguiremenis — we
comparned the forecasted amounts to historical
working capital requirements; and

¥  WACC & terminal value we developed a
range of parameters using avadlable market
inpute and performead sensitivity analyees using
these psrameters to determine the
reasonableness of management's lair value
measuraments,

s  Considered subsequent evenis and impact on the
entity's cash Mows and forecasts,

e Tested e caleolalivos for mathemabaoul secercy
and eansidered the sensitivity of the ealeulation by
varying the key assumplivns and adjustments within
management’s forecast.

Based on the lesting performed, no material adjustment
to the carrying value of intangible assets was considered

NCCeSSAry.

Revenue Recognition — Non- standard contracts
related to reprographic products

Refer to notes 2(d)} and & af the eonsalidated finoncinl
statements for disclosures of releted accounting
policies, judgements and balances.

The Group adopted IFRS 15 'Hevenue from Contracts
with Customers” effective January 1, 2018, using the
madified retrospective application, with the cumulative
effect of initially pplying the standard to be adjusted ta
the opening retained earnings. Therelore the
comparative information has not been restated and
continues lo be reported under 1AS 15,

We performed the following procedures on the non-
standard eontracls related to reprographic products:

= Weoblained the Group's accounting policies as they
relate to Lhe adoption of IFRS 15 and assessed the
reasonableness of those accounting policies with the
requirements of Lhe standard.

= Welested the apening equity adjustments in relation
1o the adoption of the new standard’s clazsificabon
and measurement requirements.

+  Weobtained an understanding of the relevant
internal eontrols over the revenue process.

+  We performed cut-off testing over a sample of
revenue contracts to check that revenue is




pwc

kev audil matter o o it acddrvessed the ey sdit

mialler

Revenues earned from reprographic praducts are recognized in the correct peried based on the terms
through either an oulright sale or an operating lease of of the contracts and in accordanee with the Group's
equipment and from relaled service contracis. These accounting policy.

revenues are generated from invoices an

lumse l[rmmgner.l. These ind ud:dmpmpﬁ:munu = Wealso tested, on a sample hasis, a selection of
sald with full service maintenance agreements, revenie contracts throughout the year to evaluate
gpprupriate revenue recagnilion specifically with
focus an areas of impact such as the identification of
contract assets and liabilibes and timing of revenue
recognition for contracts with multipls performence

Sales and lease agreements that arc individually
negotiated and tailored to meet the specific
creumstances of the custamers typleally include elauses

thet have revenue recognition implications. We focused obligations.

an this area as there is increased management ¢ We examined the reversal of any sales in the
judgement surrounding the identification of contract subsequent period to evaluate approprisle revenue
assets and liabilities and timing of revenue recognition recugiibn.

for contracls with multiple performence abligations.
No exceptions were identified from our testing that

required management Lo make any adjustments to the
consolidated financial statements.

How we tailored our group audit scope
We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the
accounting proeesses and controls, and the industries in which the Group operates.

The Group comprised 12 reporting components of which, we selected 8 components for testing which
represent the principal business units within the Group and covered entities within Jamaica, Barbados,
Central America, the Netherlands Antilles, Nicaragua and Dominican Republic, A full scope audit was
performed for Productive Business Solutions Central America and ils subsidiaries as il was delermined to
be individually financially significant Additonally, based on our professional judgement, Productive
Business Solutions (Nicaragua) Limited was selected to perform audit procedures on specific account
balances due to the materality of certaln individual balances to the consolidated financial statement as a
whaole. We performed analytical procedures with respect to the remaining components with exception of
inconseguential entities. All of the in scope components were audited by a PricewaterhouseCoopers (alsa
referred to as “PwC) network firm.

In establishing the overall Group audit strategy and plan, we determined the type of work that is needed to
be performed at the component level by the Group engagement team and hy the component auditors,
Where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the level of involvement we
needed to have in the andit work of those eomponents tn he ahle to conclude whether sufficient
approprigte avudit evidence has been obtained os a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The Group team reviewed the working papers of PBS Central America and its
subsidiaries. The Group team reviewed all reports with regards to the audit approach and Andings
submitted in detail by the full scope component.
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Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Report (but does not include the eonsolidated finaneial statements and our auditor’s report thereon},
which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

[n connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated finanrial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter ta those charped with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated finoncial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for azseszing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, dizclosing, as applicable, matiers related Lo going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative bul Lo do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s respansi‘bi‘ﬁﬁas for the audit of the co nsolidated fin ancial statements
Qur objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in acenrdance with 1SAs will alwayz detect a material mizstatemnent when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuvally or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected Lo influence Lhe economic decisions of users laken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
ubtain sudit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate tn provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of
internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluaie the appropriateness of accounling policies used &nd the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Coneclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audil evidence oblained, whether a matenial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ebility to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audilor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguale,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the eonsolidated financial statements,
ineluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
We ure responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requiremcnts regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and whete applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with thuse charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matlers in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that & matter should not be communicated in nur report berause the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the publie interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audil resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ann Wallace-Elcock.

stk mas o frso SK L

Bridgetown, Barbadns
31 March 2019
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Productive Business Solutions Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2018 2017
Mote £'0o0a £'000
Caontinuing Operations
Revanues 6 179,204 171,906
Direcl expenses (104,226} (98.650)
Gross Profit 75,068 73,246
Other income 7 1,397 GBS
Selling, general and adminislrative expenses {84,507) (67,744)
Impairment losses {154) -
Operating Profit 11,764 6,187
Finance cosls 10 {9,154) {5,902)
ProfitLoss) hefore Taxation 2,610 {2,715)
Taxalion 11 {2,478} {2,031)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 134 {4,746)
Other Comprehensive Incoma
ttems that may be subsagquently reclassified lo profl or loss:
Currency translation differences on the net assets of farei
;?hsi:iarias o {2.456) {285)
ltams that will not ba raciassified to profil or foss:
Actuadal losses - termination banafite - (166)
{2,456) {431}
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS E|322= iE.1 ?Ti
Profit{Loss) for the Yaar ia Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company B3 {4.878)
Man-canlrolling interests 65 132
134 {4.746)
Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year Is Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company (2,387) (5,309}
Meon-conlrolling interesls 65 132
(2,322) (9,177}
Cenis Cents
Baslc and diluted eamings per share for loss from continulng operation 13
attributable to ordinary share holders 0.06 (3.96)

The accompanying notes form an integral par of these consolidated financial stalements.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited

Consoclidated Statement of Financial Position
31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2018 2017
Nata 000 £'000
Mon-Currant Asseats
Proparly, plant and equipment 15 22,657 20,291
Intanglble assets 16 16,393 19,6818
Lease receivables 17 2,393 2,082
Long lerm receivebles 1B 1,566 1,386
Deferred tax assels 19 1,439 1,015
46,448 44,382
Current Assats
Dua from related parties 20 7.6511 6,23
Inventories 21 42 956 42,700
Contract assels 34 H26 -
Trade and olher receivables 22 50,589 43,583
Current porlion of leasa receivables 17 2,048 1,885
Taxalion recoverable 9,992 9,565
Cash and cash equivalania 23 6,570 12,097
120,592 116,01
Current Liabllities
Trade and other payables 24 40,487 39,050
Contract iahilities 34 3670 -
Due to relaled parties 20 8,043 7,248
Taxalion payable 2.602 2407
Short lerm loans 25 1,526 1,881
Current porlion of long-term kans 25 a9 627
Bank overdrait 25 3,505 -
59,932 51,333
Met Current Asssis 60,8680 64,738

107,108 109,130




Productive Business Solutions Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
31 December 2018

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 3

Note
Equity
Attributable ta Shareholders of the Company
Shara capital 26
Other reserves 27
Accumulaled deficit 14428
Non-controlling interests
Mon-Current Liabilities
Retirament benefit obligation 30
Defamred incomea tax Gabililies 19
Borrowings 25

2018 2017
5'000 5'000
57,317 57,317
(16,207) (13.751)
(8.030) (5,523)

35,000 38,033
549 484
35,629 38,517
565 579
423 152
U4 69,882
71,479 70,613

107,108 102,130

Approved for issuo by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

il

Faul Seet

Directar

The accompanying nates farm an integral part ol Ihesa consolidated financeal siatemenls
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Productive Business Solutions Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Attributable to Shareholders of the

Company
Non-
Number of Shara Other Accumulated controlling
Sharas Capital Resarves Deaficit interest Total
‘000 $'000 $'000 $'0D00 $'000 %'0D0
Balancs &t 1 January 2017 45,001 43,001 (11.026) {2.884) 352 31,343
Cumancy translation differences - - (263) = - {265)
Acluarial loses on the tarminalion
banafils = = mv {283) - {(188)
Met loss - - - {4.878) 132 (4,746}
Total comprehensive loss - - {148) {5,161) 132 (6,177}
Transfer from resarves - - {2,577 2,812 - 35
Increase in share capital (note 2G) 78,271 ____12.316 - - - 12,318
Balanca at 1 January 2016 123,272 57,317 {13,751 {5,533) 484 38,517
Change in accounting policy (nota i} ; B R
34) (566) (566)
Bakncs as al 1 January 2016,
tatad 121,272 57.317 (13.751) {6,088) 484 37,951
Currancy ranslation differences - - {2,450) - - (2.456)
Net profit - - - 68 65 134
Taotal comprehensive lass - - {2,456) 69 65 (2.322)
Balance at 31 Decambar 2018 123,272 67.317 {16,207} {G,0:30) 548 35,629

The accompanying notes form an inlegral par of these consolidated inancial stalemants.



Productive Business Solutions Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2018

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page &5

2018 T

$'ono $'000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities {Note 32) 722 (5.886)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Inlerast paid (8.771) {4.134)
Proceeds from bomrowing 4,291 22,082
Repaymenls of borrowings {2,083) {17,450)
|ssuance of shares 12,316
MNat cash [used in} provided by financing activilies (4.543) 12,794
Cash Flows fram Investing Activilies
Inlerest received G543 13
Purchase of proparly, plant and equipment {2,945) (5,422)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and aquipment 804 5,631
Mat cash (used in} providad by invasiing activilies (1.702) 222
Met {Decreasa)f Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (6.523) 7,130
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 12,097 4,962
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (4} 3
CASH AND CASH EQINVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 23) 6,570 12,097

The principal non-cash transactions include:

¢+ Transfar to property, plant and sequipment from owvenlory during operating lease period of $12,643,000

{2017 - $10,385,000),

« Transfer from property, plant and eguipment (o inventory upon expiry of operating lease of $9.434,000

{2017 - $9,593,000).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thesa consclidated financial sialemants.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1.

ldantification and Principal Activities

Productive Business Solutions Limited ("the Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in Barbados under lhe
Intemational Business Corporation (IBC) Act Cap. 77 on 16 Decamber 2010. Tha regielared offica of lhe Company is at Facey
House # 42 Wamens Industrial Park, Wamens, SL. Michaels, Barbados.

Tha Company is capilalised by ordinary shares and preference shares. The Company is a subsidiary of Facey Group Limiled.
a company incorporated in Barbados under the Companies Acl, Cap. 308 of the laws of Barbados as an intemational business
company which owns 6B.28% of the ordinary shares. Tha preference shares ara 25,800,000 9.75% Jamaican dallars
redeemable cumulative preference sharas,

The Company is lisled on the Jamalca Stock Exchange and ihe Intemational Securilies Market in Barbados.

Tha Company's ullimate parant company and controlling party are Elkan Limited (*Elkon™), which is incorporated and domiciled
in Jamaica, and Paul B Scott, respectively.

The principal acliviies of tha Company and Its subsidlaries, (refarrad to as “Group”) are tha distribulion of printing eguipmant,
business machines, handsets and related accessorias.

Tha financial slalemants wara authonised for issue by the direclors on 31 March 2019. The direclors have the powerto amend
and reigsue Ihe financial stalemanls.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

The principal accounting policies applled In the preparation of ihess consolidated financial slalemants, herein allar relered lo
as lhe financial statements, are set out below. These policies have bean consistently appliad to all Ihe yaars prasentad, unless
otherwise stated.

|a) Basis of preparation
The inancial slalemants have been prepared in accordance with Inlemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
IFRS Inlempralation Commitlee {IFRS IC) applicable o companies reporting under IFRS. The consolidated financhal
statamenls have been prepamd under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of cerlain items of

property, plant and equipmenl.

The preparation of financial slatements in conformity with IFRS requires tha use of cartain crilical accounling estimates.
Il also requires management lo exercise its judgement In the process of appiying the Group's accounting poficias, Although
these estimates are based on managements' best knowledge of cument evenls and aclion, actual results could differ from
lhose eslimates. The areas invalving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas wherns assumplions and
astimales ara significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Mate 4,
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Productive Business Solutions Limited
MNaotes to the Caonsolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2.

Summary af Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

{a) Basis of preparation {conflnued)

Standards, intergretations and amendments to published standards effoctive In current yaar

Certain new slandards, amendments and interpretalions lo existing slandards have baan published that became allecliva
during the current financial year. The Group has assessad the relevance of all such naw standards, inlerpretations and
amendments and has affacled the following, which are immediately relevant (o its cperations:

IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments’ |effactiva for annual periods beginning on or alter 1 January 201 8) spealies how
an entity should classify and measure financial instrumenls, including some hybrid contracis. [t requires all fnancial
assels to bo classified on the basis of the entity's business model for managing the fAnancial assets and the
contraciual cash flow characleristics of the financial asset; inidally measured at falr value plus, in the case of a
inancial asset not al fair valus through profit or loss, particular ransaction cosls; and subsequenlly measured al
amorlieed cosl or fair valus. These reguiremants mprove and simplify Ihe approach for olassification and
measuremeant of financial assals comparad with the requiremants of IAS 39, They apply a consistent approach to
classifying financial assels and replace the four calegones of inancial agsels in WS 39, each of which had ils oem
classification criterfa. For financial Rabilities, the standand retaine most of tha IAS 38 requirements. The main change
is that, in cases whera the fair vafue oplion s taken for inancial liablities, he part of a falr value change dua to an
entity's own credit risk is recordad in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless Lhis
creales an accounting mismatch. IFRS 9 introduces a new madel for the recognition of impaimment losses - lhe
expectad cradit losses (ECLY model. There is a ‘three stage' approach which is based on the changa in credit quality
of financial assals since inilial recognilion. In praclics, lhe new rules mean thet enlilies will have to recard an
immediate Iozs equal ta the 12-month ECL on initia! racognition of finencial asests thal sre nol credit impaired {or
lifelima ECL for trade receivablas). Whera there has been a significant increase in credit risk, impairman| is maasured
using lifztime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. Managemenl has assessad the applicalion of the credit loss madel on
trade receivables, lease receivables and inter-company balances under IFRS 9. The Impact on these financial
stalements were not material. Managemenl has utilised the modified retrospective transition approach. The Group
applied IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 and has elected not 1o reslate comparative information in accordance with the
ransilional provisions. As a result, the comparative information provided conlinues lo be actounted forin accordance
wilh the Group's previous accounting policy. Addilional disclosures in accordance with the standard have been
included in the inancal slatemants in Nola 34,

IFRS 15, 'Revenum from Contracis with Customers’, {(sffective for the penods beginming on or afler
1 January 2018). The new slandard infroduces the core principla thal revenus must be recognised when the goods
ar sarvices are fransfamed lo the customer, at the transaclion price. Any bundled goods or services that are dislinct
must be saparately recognised, and any discounts or rebales on the contract price must generally be allocated 1o the
separate elemenls. When the consideration varies for any reason, minimum amounts must be recognised if they are
not at significant risk of reversal. Costs incurred to sacure contracls with cuslomers have to be capilalised and
amortised over the period when Lhe benefils of the contract are consumed. Management has ulilised the modified
ralrospactive ransilion approach. The Group applied IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and has elacted not to reslale
compardlive informalion in accordance wilh the lransitional provisions.,  As a result, lhe compamtive information
provided conlinues to he accounled for in accordance wilh Ihe Gmup's previous accounting palicy. Furthermore
management has idanlified contract assels and [iabilities as reported in the statement of financial position. Additional
disclosures in accordance with the standard have been Included in the financial statements in Note 34.

Amendment la IFRS 15, ‘Revanus from contracis with customers’, (effeclive for accounling periods baginning
on or after 1 January 2018}, Theses amendments comprise clarificalions of the guidance on identifying performance
obxigations, accounling for lcences of intellectual property and the principal versue agent assessment (Qross VErsus
nel revenue presenialion). The IASB has also included additional practical expedients related to transition o the new
revanua standard.

IFRIC 22,' Foreign currancy fransactions and advance consideratian’, (elfeclive for annual parinds baginning on
or after 1 January 2018). The amendment clarifies how o datermine the exchange rate for inilial recognition of a non-
monetary assel or non-manalary Rability In conneclion with an advance consideralion. The enlity has not been
materially impacted by this Interpretation as there has always been consensus on the definiion of date of the
transaction {consequently the date for delemining the exchange rale) as the date of inilial recognition, as required
by the interprelation.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018
{Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcies (Continued)
(a} Basis of praparatian (cantinuad)

Standards, inferpretations and amendmentfs fo published standards that are not yet effective and have not bean
early adopted by the Group

The Group has concluded lhat the following standards which are published but not yet effective, are relevant to its
operalions and will impact the Group's accounting policies and inancial disclosures as discussed below. Thesa slandards
and amendments to exisling standarmds are mandatary for the Group's sccounling parcds beginning afler
1 Janwary 2018, but the Group has not early adopled them:

¢« IFRS 16, 'Leases’ [sffective for annual parinds beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earier application
permited if IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, is also applied). The Inlemational Accounting
Standards Board {JASB)} published IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, which replaces the cumant guidanca in 1AS 17. This will require
changes in accounting by lessees in padicular. IFRS 16 requires kessecs to recognise a lease liabllity reflecting
futura leasae payments and a 'right-of-use assel’ for virlually all loase contracts. The IASE has Included an optional
examption for certain shord-lerm leasas and leases of low-value assels; however, this exemption can anly be applied
by lessees. Forlessors, the accounting elays almost lhe sama. Howaver, as lhe IASB has updated the guidance on
the definition of a leaea {as well as the guidance on ihe combinalion and separation of contracts), lessors will also
be affected by the new standard. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a leasa if tha coniract convays Iha nght
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, The Group has commeanced
assessmaont and has ientified that a right of use asset and lease obligation would have to be recordsd on the
consolidaled financial statements and the assoclated depreciation and Inlerest expense within the consolidated
stalement of comprehensive income.

» IFRIC 23, 'Uncertalnty over Income tax treatments’ (sffeclive for annual period beginning on or afler
1 January 201%). This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and measurameni requiremenis of |1AS 12 'Income taxes’,
arc appllied where there is uncertainty over income tax treatmants, The IFRS IC had clarfied previously that 1AS 12,
not 1AS 37 ‘Provisions, conlingont Nabiliies and contingent assets', applies to accounting for uncertain Income lax
lraalmenls. IFRIC 23 explains how to recognise and measure deferred and cumant incoma lax assals and liabilities
whara tham is uncerainly ovar & lax reatmenl. The adoplion of Lhis standard is not expected lo have a significant
impacl on lha Group.

=  Amendment to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments’, on prepayment features with negative compensation {sffective
for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). This amendment confirm thal when a financial liakility
measured at amorlised cost s modiied withoul this resulting in de-recognilion, a gain or loss shouwld be recognised
immediately in profil or loss. Tha gain or loss i3 caleulaled as lha differance between the original conlraclual cash
fiows and the modifisd cash flows discountad al lhe orginal effective interest rate. This means that lhe difference
cannct be spraad over lhe remaining life of lhe inslirument which may be a changa in practice from 1AS 38. The
adoplion of this standard is not expecied to have a significant impact on the Group.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless atherwise indicated)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

{(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

Standards, Interprefations and amendments o published standards that are not yet affective and have not bean
early adopted by the Group {continued)

Annual Improvements 20152017 (effeclive for annual pariod beginning un or afler 1 January 2019). Thasa
amendments include minor changes Lo
« IFRS 3, 'Business combinalions’, — a company remeasures ils previously held interast in a joint operation when
it obtains control of the business.
« |FRS 11, “Jaint arrangements’, — a company doas not remeasure Iis previously hald inlerest in a joint operation
whan it oblains joint control of the business.
= |AS 12, 'Income laxes’ — a company accounis for all income tax consequences of dividend payments in lhe
SEIME Waly.
= |AS 23, 'Borowing costs’ — a company treats as part of general bomowings any bemowing originally made ta
develop an assel when the asset Is ready for its intended uea or sala.
The adoption of these standards Is not expected lo have a significant impact on the Group.

Thera ara na olhar new of amended standards and interprotations that are publishad bul not yet effective that would be
expecied to have an impacl on the accounling policies or finencial disclosures of the Group.

{b} Consolidation

(i}

Subsidiaries

Subskiares are all entitles over which the Group has control. The Group controls an enlity when lhs Group is exposed
to, or has rights lo, vadable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums
through its power 1o direct the aclivities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidaled from the dale on which conlrol
is lransfemed lo lhe Group. Thay are de-consolidated from the dale that conlrol ceases.

The acquisition method of eccounting is used to account for business combinations involving third paries by the
Group. The considaralion transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the i values of the assets transfered, the
liahilities incurred and the equily inlereats issued by the Group. The consideralicn transfermed includes Lhe fair value
of any assat or liability resulting from a contingent coneideralion amangemanl. Acquisilion-related cosls are expensed
as incurred. |deniifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilitiss assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisiion date. On an acquisilion-by-acquisilion basis, the Group
recognisas any non-controling interest In the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-conirolling interast’s
propaortionate share of the acquiree’s net assels.

The excess of the consideralion transfermed, the amounl of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisilion-deta fair value of any previous equily inlerest in lhe acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
ausgls acguired and liabiliies assumed is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than Lhe fair value of the nel assets of
the subsidiary acquirad in tha casa of a bargain purchaeas, lhe difference is recognisad direclly in profit or loss, in the
stalement of comprahensive income.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States doliars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

{b) Consolidation (continued)
(I} Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transaclions, balances and unreallsed gaine on transactions batwean Group companies ara
eliminaled. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounling policies of subsidiaries have been changed whara
necassary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group's subsidisries, countries of incorporation, and the Group's percentage interest are as follows:

Country of Peraniage
Incarporation Interast
2018 2017
Produclive Business Solulions Limited Barbados 100 100
Froduclive Business Solulions Carbbaan Limiled and ils
subsidiaries Saint Lucia 100 100
Produclive Business Solulions Limitad Jamaica 100 100
Cayman Business Machines Limited® Cayman 40 40
Mobay Holdings M.V, and its subsidiary Curacan 100 100
Produclive Business Solutions (Curacaa) B.V. and its subsidiary Curacao 100 100
Produclive Business Solutions (Aruba) N.V. Aruba 100 100
Productive Businese Solutions Limitad and its subsidianes Saint Lucia 100 100
Doymurican
Produclive Business Solutions Dominicana, 5.A.5. Rapublic 100 100
Nicaragua Holdings and its subsidiary Saint Lucia 100 100
Productive Business Solutions (Nicaragua), 5.A, Micaragua 100 100
Springer Clarke Business Machines Limited and its subsidianes Barbados 100 100
Praduclive Business Solutions |[Barbados} Limited Barbados 100 100
ADB Investments Limitad Barbados 100 100
Produclive Business Solulions (Central America), 5.A and ils
subsidiaries Fanama 100 100
British Yirgin
Dorada Managemant Inc. Islands 100 100
Producliva Business Solulions [Gualemala}), S.A. Guatemala 100 100
Global Products Alliance, Incorporated US4 100 100
Produclive Business Solutions Costa Rica, 5.4 Cosla Rica 100 100
Documenios y Digitales S.A. Guatemala 100 100
MNegocios Folograficos, 5.A. Guatemala 100 100
Productive Business Solutions El Salvador, 5.A. de GV, El Salvador 100 100
Productive Buginess Sclulions {Panamaj), S.A. and
Tradeco Zona Libre 5.4, Panama 100 100
Pmductive Business Sclulions {Belize)} Limiled Bulize 100 100
Productiva Business Solulions Hondurag, 5.4, de C.V. Honduras 75 75
Pmductive Business Solulions {Colomhia), 5.A.5. Colombia 100 100
Productiva Busmass Solulions {South Ameanca) Limited Sainl Lucia 100 100
Froductive Business Solulions {Surinama} Limilad Saint Lucia 100 100

" In accordance with Cayman laws, entities that are domiciled In the Cayman Island and ara not issued as Local Companies Control
Law Licenses, gra required 1o be et leasl 80% owned by 8 Caymanian. The operalion of Cayman Business Machines Limited is
however contrallad by Produciive Business Soluions Limited and Is therafora, In substance, calegorized as a subsidiary.,
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2,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cantinuad)

b} Consolidalion [continued)

(i)

(i)

Transactions with non-controliing interests

The Group Ireats transactions wilh non-controlling interesls as Irmensactions with equily owners of the Group. For
purchases of ownership inlerest In subsidiaries from non-controliing interesis in which the Group retains control of
the subsidiary, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying valua
of nel arsals of the subsidiary is recorded in equily. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests where
conirod ie retainad by the Group ara also recordad in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influenca, any relained inlerast in the enlily is remeasured Lo
its fair value, with the change in camying amount recognised in profil or loss. Tha fair value is the initial camying
amount for Ihe purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained inlerast as an associals, joint ventura or financial
azsel. In addition, any amounts préviously recognised in other comprehensive Income in respect of thal enlity are
accounied for as if the Group had direclly disposed of lhe relaled assels or liabililies. This may mean that amounts
praviously recognised in other comprahansive income are reclassified Lo profit or loss.

if the ownership interest in an asenciate is raducad bul significant influence is retained, anly a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehaneive incoma ame reclassified to profit or loss where appropnale.

{e] Foreign currency translation

{d)

(1

(i)

(iil)

Furciional and presamalion currancy

ltems included in the financial slatemeants of each of the Group's entilies are measwed using the currency of the
primary economis environment in which sach enlity oparates {lhe functional curmancy’). The consclidated financial
slatements are presented In Unlled States Dollars, which is tha company's funclional and prasentalion currency.

Transaclions and balances

Foreign cummency transaclions are ranskated into the funclional curency using the exchanpe rates pravailing at the
dales of lhe transaclions or valuation where ilems are re-measured. At the slatement of financial position dala,
monatary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated vsing the weighled averaga closing
axchanga rale. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transaclions and from the
Iranslation al yesar-and exchange rales, of monelary assels and liabililies denominated in foreign curmencies are
recognisad in profit or koss.

Group companes

The results and financial position of all the group enlilies {none of which has the currancy of a hyper-inflalionary
cconomy) that have a functional curency different from the preseniation currency are iransfated as follows:

a) Assels and liabliities for each balance sheet presenied ar translated at year end rates,

b) Items affecting the statement of comprehensive income are translated at average rates, and

¢  The resullant gains or losses are recognised in other camprehansive income as lranslation gains or losses.

Goodwill and fair value adjustmants ansing on lhe acquisilion of a foreign enlily are lrealed as assets and liabilities
of the foreign enlity and iranslated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in olhar
comprahensive Income.

Revenue recognlilon

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration recaived or receivable for the sale of goods and sarvices in the
ardinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of applicable value added taxes, retums. rebates and
discounis and afler eliminating sales wilhin the Group.

Revanue is recognised ag follows:

Reprographic products
Revenue eamed from reprographic products Is either through an outright sale or an operating lease of equipment and
from relaled senvice conlracts.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

{d}

(e)

Revenue recognlition (continued)

Reprographic producls {canlinued)

Revenues from the sale of equipment, including those from sales-type leases, are recognised at the time of sale or at the
inception of the lkase, as appropriale. For equipment sales thal require installation. revenue is recognised when the
aquipmenl has been delivered and installed at the customer location. Sales of customer-installable products are
recognised upon shipment or eceipl by the cuslomer according to the cuslomer's shipping lerms. Revenues from
equipmen] under alhar [easss and similar amangements are eccounled for by lhe operating lease method and are
racognieed as eamed over the leasse term, which is generally on & straight-line bagis.

A substanlial portion of the Group's reprographic products is sold with full service malntenance agreemenls. Service
ravenuas are derivad primarily from lhese mainlenance contracts on equipment sold to customers and are recognised
over the ferm of the conlracts in lha accounling period in which Lhe services are rendered, by reference to completion of
the specific transaction assessed on the basie of the actual service pruvided as a proporiion of the tolal services Lo ba
provided.

Upan implemantation of IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with cuslomars, the recognilion policiss have focused on tha
application of the 5-step model. Revenue is recognized only after there are specific indicator of transfer of control lo ha
customer. To evidence transfer of control on contracls where revenue |5 recognized at a point In time, managemeant has
dafmad that revenus can only be recognized after the eguipment ar part is installed or the supplies are delivered. Bill and
hold agresmenls are scrulinized to ensura Lhe transfer of control to the custamer is affective.

Far contracls whare revenue is recognized over tima, management veriies the contracl checklist has bean properly filled
out and evidence is captured to damonstrate the service is being provided to lhe cuslomer.

Telecommunicalions products
Revenua fram telecommunications products comprises revenue from the sales of callular phones. Thase products am
sold under contractual agreements with the telecommunications providers.

Revanuea from tha sale of klecommunicalions producls is recognised on 8 gross basis as management has determined
thal the Group acls a8 & principal in relalion to lhesse Iransactiona, due to the facl thal the Group bears the majority of risk,
principally credit and inventory risk, in relalion fo such transactions, and lhe Group also acts as primary cbligor. Wilh the
implementation of IFRS 15, conlrmol became the key consideralion when assessing the natura of lha promise lo ha
cuslomer. When the entity doss not control the nood or sarvice (or invantory) bafora it is Iranslemed to lhe customer it @
likaly that the promisa in the contract is to amanga for goods ar services to be dalivered (rather lhan lhesa to be providad
by the antity). In such cases, lhe net of revanue minus Its cost is presenied a8 a commisgion, within ihe Other Incoma
account of the statemenl of comprehensiva Income.

Ravanue rom the sale of telecommunications products is recognised when a Group enfity has delivered products to the
customer; the customer has accepled the products and collectabilily of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income |s recegnisad on the accrual basis on the effactive interest basis, axcept when colleciability is considerad
doublful. In such cases, Income is recorded when economic benefits are received.

Property, plant and equipment

Lard and bulldings are shown al fair value, based on valuations by extemnal independent valwars, less subsaquent
deprecialion for buildings. Valuations are parformed with sufficient regularity to ensura that the fair value of a revalued
assal doas nol differ matarally from ila carrying amownl. Any accumulated deprecialion al the data of revaluation is
aliminalad against the gross camying amount of the assel, and lhe nel amount is restated Io Lha revalued amount of the
assal,

Increases in the camying amount arising on revalualion of land and tuildings are crediled to other comprehensive Incoma
and shown as other reserves In shareholder's equity. Decreases that offset pravious Increases of ihe same assat are
recarded in other comprehensive income and debiled against other reserves direclly in equity; all other decreases are
charged lo the profit or loss.

Ail ather property, plant and equipmanl ara slalad al hisloncsl cosl less accumulated dapraciation and impeirment losses.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies {Continued)

{e}

{n

{a)

Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Land is not depracialed as it is deemed to have an indefinile life. For all other property, plant and equipment. deprecialion
is caloulalad al annual rales on tha straight-line basis to wiilte-off the cost of the assels to their residual values over thair
estimatad usaful lves st annual rales as folkws:

Freehold buildings 2-2%%
Leasehold buildings and improvemeanls 10 - 20%
Fumnitura, Exlures, planl and equipment 10 - 33A4%
Motor vehicles 20 -25%

3ains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determinad by comparing procesds with the carrying
amount and are includad in operating profit.

Repairs and mainlensnca axpendilure is charged o profit or koss during the financial period In which it is incumed. The
cosl of major rencvations is included in the camying amount of the assel when it is probable that fulure economic benefits
in excess of the orginally assessed standard of performance of the axisling assel will low to the Group.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in olher reserves am Iransfemed to elaned gamings.

Intanglble assets

(i} Goodwill
Goodwill represants the axcess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of tha net
identifiable assals of lhe acquired subsidiary, associate or joint venlure at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisition of subsidiares is includad in inlangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and joint ventures
is included in investment in associales and invesiment in joint vanlure, respectively. Separately recognised goadwill
is lested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulaled impairment losses. Impairment losses an
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the camying amount of goodwill
relating Lo the entity soid.

Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-generating units for the purpose of impaiment testing. The allocation Is made to those
cash-generaling unils or Groups of cash-generaling unils that are expected 1o benedfit from the business combinalion
in which the goodwill arosea.

(i} Brands, contracis, enftwars, franchiss agmeameants and licences.
Brands, contracls, softwars, franchisa agreemanis and licences are shown al lisloncal cost less amorlisation and
impairment and are deemed to have linila ussful lives. Amarligation is calculaled using Lha slraghl-line mathod o
allpcate he cost of the Intangible assels over their estimated usehul lives hetwean 6 and 20 yaars.

(i) Compuler software
This represents acquired computer software licences, which are caplitalised on the basls of cosls Incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. The costs of thesa assels are amodised aver their estimated useful lives of
threa yaars.

Impairment of non-financial assats

Assals that have an indefinite useful life are not subject o amortisation and are lested annually for impairmant. Assels
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changas in cimumslances [ndicate that
lha carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impalmnent loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value less cosls
lo s&ll and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assels are grouped at lhe lowast levels for which there
are separalaly idenlifisble cash lows {(cash-generaling unils). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewsd (or possibla reversal of lhe impairmant at each mpoarling data,
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Summary of Significant Accouniing Policles {Continued)

(h} Financlal instrurmsanis

A financlal instrement is any contract thal gives risa o bolh a financial asset in one enlity and a financial liability or equity
of anolher entity.

Financial assets

Classification
From 1 Janusry 2018, the Group classifies its financial assels al amortised cost. The classificalion depends on the
business made! used for managing the financial assats and the contractual lerms of the cash flows.

impairment
From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected cradit lossas (ECL) associated wilh
ils inancial assels classified at amarlised cost, lease receivables, long lerm receivables and ralated party balances.

Application of fha General Mode!

The Group has applied Ihe ‘general medel’ as required under IFRE 9 for financial assets other than trade receivables, Under
this model, the Group Is required to assess on a forward-looking basis lhe ECL associated wilh ils financial assels camied at
amortised cost. The ECL will be recognised in profit or loss before a loss svent has occurred.  Tha measuremant of ECL
reflscls an unbiased and probabilily-weighled amount that is determined by svalualing a range of possibia nulcomes.  The
probability-weighted outcome considers mulliple scenarios based on reasonable and supportable forecasts. Under curmant
quidances, impaimment amount represents the single best outcome; the time value of money: and reasonable and supporiable
information thal iz available without undua cost or effort al the reporting date about past events, cument candilions and
forecasls of future economic condilions.

ECL is calculated by multiplying the Probability of dafault {PD), Loss Given Default (LGD} and Exposure at Default [EAD],

The impaiment model uses a three-slage approach based on the extant of credil detericralion sinca originalion:

Stage 1 - 12-month ECL applies to all inancial assels that have not experenced a significant increasa in credit risk since
origination and are not credit impaired. The ECL will be computed using a 12-month PD thal represents the probabilily of
default pocuming over the nexd 12 months.

Slage 2 - When a financial asset experiences a significant increase in credit risk subsequent to arigination but is not credit
impaired, it & considered Lo be in Slege 2. This requires the compulalion of ECL based on lifeime FD that represents the
probability of default occurting over the remaining estimated life of the financial assal. Provisians are higher in this stage
because of an ncrease in risk and the impact of a longar tima horizon being considered compared to 12 months in Stage 1.

Sizge 2 - Financial assets that have an cbjective evidence of impairment will be included in this stage. Similar to Stage 2,
the allowance for credil losses will continue 1o capture the ifetime ECL.

The Group usas judgement when considering the following factors that affect the determination of impaimentl:

Aszaszment of Sgadficant Increase in Credi! Risk

The aserssment of a significant increaes in cradil nsk is done on & refaive basis. To assess whether the credit sk on a
financial assel has increased significantly sinca crigination, the Group comparas the risk of default occuming aver the
expecled e of the financial assal at the reporting date to Ine comasponding risk of dafault at ongination, using kay risk
indicators that are used In the Group's existing risk management processas. At sach reporting dale, the assessmanl of &
change in credit dsk will be individually assessed for (hose considered Individualty significant and al the segmenl level.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies [Continued)
{h} Financial instruments {confinued)

This assassment is symmetrical in nature, allowing credit risk of financial assals lo move back o Stege 1 if the increase in
credit isk since orgination has reduced and is no longer deemed to be significant.

Macroeconomic Faclors, Forward Looking Information and Multiple Scenarios
The Group applies an unbiased and prebability weighted estimale of credit losses by evalualing a range of passible oulcomeas
thal incomporates forecasts of future economic conditions.

Macrozconomic factors and forward looking Information are incorporated inlo the measurement of ECL &s wall as tha
determination of whelher there has baen a significant Increass in credit risk since orginalion. Measurement of ECLs al each
reporling period reflect reasonable and supporiable information at the reporiing date about past events, curren] condilions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group uses lhres scenanos thal are probability weighled lo determine ECL.

Expecled Lifa

When measuring ECL, the Group considers the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed (o oadil nisk.
&l contractual terms are considered when determining the expected life, including prepayment oplions and exlension and
rollover oplions.

Application of the Simplified Approach

For trade recelvables, the Group applias the simplified approach pamilted by IFRS 9, which requires that the impaimeant
provision s measured at initial recognition and throughout 1he life of the eceivables using a lifeime ECL. As a praclical
expedient, 3 provision matrix is uliised in determining the lifelime ECLs for trade receivables.

The lifetime ECLs are delermined by taking into consideration histodcal rales of default for sach ssgment of aged
receivables as well as the estimated impact of forward looking information,

Application of this polley until 31 December 2017

Tha Group applied IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 snd has elecled not lo restate comparative information in accordance with
the transilional provigions in IFRS 49 [7.2.15). Ag a resull, tha comparalive information provided conlinues lo be accounted
for in accordance wilh ihe Group's previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classified its financial assets in the fallowing cateqorias: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale. The accounting policy for Irade receivables is dealt with In Mote 2 ().
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management delermines the
clasaification of ils financial assets at inilial recognition. A inancial inslrument is any contract that glves rise to both a
financial assal in one anlity and a inancial lisbility or equity of anather enlity.

The Group classifies ils irade receivables as loans and receivables. The accounling paolicy for Irade recaivables s deall
with In Mote 2{]). The classification depands on the purpoes for which the financial aesets ware acquired. Managamanl
delermines the classification of its financlal assets at inillal recognition and re-evaluales this designation at every reporting
date. Financial assets aro derecognized when the rdghts to cash flows from the financial assels have expired or fransfarred
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are also transferred.

The Group assesses al sach slalamant of inancial position date wheather there is cbjective evidence that a inancial assel
or & Group of financial assata is impaired. Impairment provisioning of Irade receivables s describad in Note 2(j).

Financial liabilitles

The Group's financial liabilities are intially measured at fair value and are subsequently measurad at amortised cost using
the effective Interest method, this is the Iniial recognilion minus the cumulative amorization of any differsnce batwaen
lhat initial amount and the malurity amount. Financial liabilities al amorized costs are classified as current of non-current
depending whether lhase are dug wilhin 12 months afler tha balance sheel date or beyond. Financial liabilides are
deracognized when aither of the following lake place: The Group is dischamged from its obligation, upan expiration or when
ihey are cancelled or replaced by a new liability.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {Conlinued)]

i)

o

(k)

i

Inventories

Inventonss ara caried at weighled average purchase cost. These items are stated less provision for wrila down lo nat
realisahle value, where necessary and are stated at the lower of average cost and nel realisable value. Mal realisabls
valye is Iha eclimaled salling price in the ardinary course of business, less the costs of complelion and selling sxpensas.

Trade recaivables

Up until 31 December 2017, Trade recelvables are carmied at original invoice amount less provision made for impairment
of thesa receivablas based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year-and. A provision lor impairmant of trade
receivables is established whan thera is objective evidence that the Group will nol be abla to collect all the amounts dua
according to the original lerms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the diflerence betwsen the carrying
amount and the recoverabla amount, being the prasent value of expected cash flows, discounted al the market rals of
inlerest for similar borrowings. Bad debts are written-off during tha year in which they are identlified.

Effective 1 January 2018, the Group has implemented IFRS 9 Financial Instrumants, as a rasult, impairment over lrade
receivablas is monthly determined with the aid of a malrix based on the ageing of the account. Twice & year, management
asssss whether thara has been any indicator of a change in the credit rsk. Additionally (also twice & year) a
comprehensive evalualion is parformed with the objective of identifying individual accounls that may ba subject of
impairmant. Those accounls identified are ailher wrillen off from the recerds or provided for by the total of its camying

value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, restricted cash (whers applicable) and short-larm deposits with ariginal
malurilies of Uwee monlhs or less, net of bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statemeani of cash flow, cash and cash
mquivalenls includa cash in hand and at bank, short lerm bank deposits and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafls are shown
in currant isbililivs on the slalement of inancial position.

Trade payablas

These amounts represent Nabililies for goods and sarvicas provided lo the group prior ta the end of financial year which
arc unpaid. The amounts are unsecurad and are usually paid within 30 days ol recognilion. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not dus within 12 manths after lhe reporting peried. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using lhe effective inlerast mathod.

{m) Income taxes

Taxalion axpensa in the statement of comprehensive income comprises current and defemed tax chargas.

Current lax charges are based on laxable profits for the year, which differ from the profit before {ax reported becauee il
axcludes ilems thal am taxable or deductible in other yeara, and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liablity for current lax is calculated at tax ralas lhat have been enactad at the dale of he statement of financial position.

Deferred lax is the lax expected to be paid or recovered on differences betwseen lhe camying amounts of assels and
liabiliies and the comesponding tax bases., Deferred incoma lax is provided in full, using tha liability method, on temporary
differances arising between the lax bases of assels and labililles and thelr camying amounts in tha financial statemanls.
Cumranlly anacled tax rales are used in lhe determination of defemred income tax.

Defared tax assats are recognisad to the axtant that il is probable thal future tanable profit will be avallable against which
tha temporary differences can ba ulilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differencas arising on invastments in subsidianes, excepl whara tha liming
of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it Is probabls that the temporary differenca will nol reverse
in the forasacable fulure,

Currant and deferred lax assets and liabilities are offsel when they arise from the same taxable enlity. relate to the same
lax aulhorily and whan the legal righl of offsel exists.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except whena it relates to items charged or crediled to other
comprehensive income, In which case, deferred tax is also dealt with in olher comprehansive income.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies [Continued)

(n)

(o)

{p)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive cblkgation as a result of past events. it is
probable that an oulllow of resources will be required lo settle the obligation, and a reliable estimale of the amount can
ba made, Wham the Group expecls a provision lo be reimbursed, for example under an insurance conlract, the
ralmbursement is recognised as a separala asset but only whan lhe reimburssment is virually cerlain,

Share capltal
Ordinary Shares are classified as equily instruments. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognisad in equity in the period
in which they are declared.

Eamnings par shara

(i} Basic eamings per share
Basic eamings per share Is calculated by dividing:
» the profit altribulable to owners of the company, excluding any cosls of servicing equity olher than ardinary
shares
» by tha weighled average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
alamants in ordinary shares issued during lhe year and excluding treasury shares.

{iiy Diluted samings par share

Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figures used in the determinalion of basic samings par sham to take inlo

account:
» thae afler incoma lax sffect of interest and olher financing cosls associated with dilulive potlential ardinary
sharas, and

= the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares thal would have bean autstanding assuming the
conmversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Summary of Significent Accounting Pollcies {Continued)

{q) Borrowings

{r)

(a)

Borrowings are recognised indtially at cost, baing their issus procesds, net of transaclion cosls incurmed. Subssquently,
barrowings are staled at amortised cost and any difference bebween net procesds and tha redemption value is mecognised
n profit or loss over the perod of the borrowings using the effective interest methad.

Leazes

As Lessee

Leases of plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leasas are capilalised at the inceplion of the leasa at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocaled batween the liability and
finance costs so as to achiove a constant rate of retum on the finance balance outstanding. The interest alemeant of tha
financa cnst is charged to profit or loss over the lease period 50 as o produce a constant periodic rate of Interest on the
remaining balance of tha liability for sach period. Planl and equipmenl acquired under finance leases is deprecialed over

the shorter of the useful life of the assel or the leasa term.

Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are efleclivaly ratained by the lessor ara clarsified
as operating leases. Paymenls made under operating leases are chargad to profit or logs on a siraight-ine basis aver
Ihe period of Ihe lease. When an operaling leaseo is lorminated before the lease period has explred, any payment required
lo ba made lo Ihe lassor by way of penalty is recognised as an expanse in the period in which temination takes place.

As Lessar

Leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by lhe lessee are classified
as finance leases, When assets are leased out undar a finance leasa, the presenl value of lhe lease payments is
recognised as a receivable. The difference babween lhe gross meceivable and tha present value of the receivable is
recognised as uneamed finance income. Lease Income Is recagnised over lhe larm of tha leasa in a manner which reflects
a constant periedic rale of return on the net investment in he lease.

Leasas of assats under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by lhe lesseor are classified
as pparaling lesses. Assals leased out under operaling leases are included in property, plant and equipment In the
glatement of financial position. They sre depreciated over Lheir expecled useful lives on a basis consistent with similar
owned propery, plant and equipment. Rental incoma is recognisad in profit or loss an a straight-line basis over the period
of the leasa. In some instances, transfers are made from Inventory lo Proparty, Planl and Equipment to facililate lhe
leasing of assets, In instances whare leased equipment is retumed this is lransfamad from Property, Planl and Eguipmant
to Inventory.

When an operaling lease is terminatad before the lease period has expired. any payment required o be mada to iha
lessor by way of penally is recognised in profil or loss in the period in which terminatian lakes place.

Past-employment benefils

The Group pardicipates in a delined contribulion plan operated by a related party, Musson (Jamaica} Limiled, whereby it
pays contribulions lo a separals, trustes-adminislered fund forits Jamaican operation. Once the conlribulions have been
paid, the Group has no furiher payment obligalions. Centribulions to the plan are charged to profil or loss in the period o

which they relate.

There is an unfunded retirement benefit plan in the Nicaragua and El Salvador operations which is refizcted in the balance
sheet as a liability. Changes to benefits are calculated by third party acluares and are reflected In the Stalement of
Comprahansiva Income.

Tarmination banefits are payable whan employmenl i lerminated by the Group before the nomal relirament dale, or
whanaver an employes accepls voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes lenminetion
benefits at the eardler of he following dales: {a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the oifer of those benefilts; and
{b) when the enlity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of 1AS 37 and involves the paymant of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the terminalion benafits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due mare than 12 months
aflar tha end of the raparling period are discounled Lo their presant valua.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continuad)

()

(u)

)

Finance costs
Finance costls includes inleresl payable on bomowings calculatad using the effective interest method, interest on finance

leases, matenal bank chamges and foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in profit or koss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assels and liabililies are offset, and the net amount reported in tha slatement of financial position whan there is
a legally enforcoable right to offset the recognised amounts and thers is an intention to eeltle on a nelt basis or realisa the
assel and settle (he lability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future evants and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruplcy of ihe company
or tha countarparty.

segment Information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consislent with tha intemal reporting provided to the chisl operaling

decision-maker. The chiel aparating decision maker Is the Chief Execulive Officer,

Financial Risk Management

(@

Financlal risk factors

The Group's aclivities expose | to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currancy risk, fair valua inlerast rate
risk and cash Mow interest rate risk), credit risk and Nquidity risk. The Group's overall risk managemenl programme
focuses on the unprediclability of financlal markels and seeks to minimise potential adverse sffects on the Group's
Nnancial parformancea.

The Group's risk managemenl policies are designed to idenlify and analyse these risks, to sot appropriale risk limits and
conlrols, and to monitor tha risks and adherence lo limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems.

Risk managemeant is carriad out by a canlral treasury dapartmant {Groug traasury) under palicies appraved by the Board
of Directors. Group treasury identifies and evaluales finandal risks in close co-operation wilh the Group's operaling
units. The Board provides principles for overall risk managament, a8 wall ss policies covaring specilic areas, such as
foreign exchange risk. Interest rate rsk, credit risk and invesiment of excess liquidity.

{iy Creditrisk

The Group lakes on exposure to credit risk, which is tha risk that its customers, clients or counterparties will cause
a hnancial lras for tha Group by failing to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit exposures arise pancipally
from the Group's receivables from cuslomers and are influenced mainly by the individual characleristics of each
customer. The Gmup has established credit policies under which each customer is analysed individually for
craditworthiness prior to the Group offering ihem a cradit facility. Credil limits are assigned to sach customar and
are reviewed on an ongoing bagis. The Group has proceduras in place to rastrict cuslomar orders if the ordear will
result in customers exceeding thelr credit limits. Customers whao fail to mest the Group’s benchmark craditworthiness
may lransact with the Group on a prepayment basis,

Customer credit risk is monitored according to their credit characteristics such as whether i Is an individual or
company, geographic localion, induslry, aging profile, and previous financial difficulties. As al 1 January 2018, the
Group establishes an allowsanca for impaimment thet mprasents ils estimale of expacted credit losses in respect of
trada and olher receivables. As at 1 January 2017, the Group eslablishes an allowanca for impairment that
rapresants its eslimala of incurmad credit koeses in respect of trade and other mceivables. The Group addresses
impairment assessment in bwo areas: individually assesead allowances.

The Group's average credit pedod on the sale of goods is 80 days. The Group gensrmally provides fully for all
receivables over 180 days based on historical experence. Trade recelvables between 90 and 180 days are provided
for based on an estimate of amounls thal would be imecoverable, determined by taking into considoration past
dafeull expansence, current and fulure sconomic conditions and expecled receipls and recoveries once impained.

Cash transactions ara limited to high credit quality financial institutions. The Group has policies in place 1o limil Ue
amount of exposure to any one financial institution. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the amount reflecied on
Ihe balance sheel.
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3. Financial Risk Management {Continuad)
{a} Financial risk factors

(i) Creditrisk
At year end, the banks whare the Group maintains most of ils cash, wera raled by Fitch Ratings as follows.

ShoriTerm  Long Term

BAC Bank, Inl. Fi+ AAA
CIBC First Carbbaan Inlemational Bank Fi+ AL~
Citibank F1+ ALA

Trade recelvalies that are past due but not impailred
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past dua bul not impaired was aa follows:

2018 2017
§'000 §'000
90 to 180 days 2,762 2,143
Grealer than 180 days 9,486 3,821

12,258 6,064

Trade mecaivables that are considered impaired
Cerlain Irada receivables are considarad impaired and have baan fully provided for. The movement In the provisicn
for hess trade recaivables was as follows:

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
At start of year 1,827 1,288
Provision for impairment 438 7an
\Wrile-offs during the year (311} [273)
Unused amounts reversed (103) 113
Exchange diffarence (B} (1)
At end of year 1,843 1,827

Credif exposure for trade recelvabias
The credit exposure for trade receivables at their camying amounts, as calegonsed by the customer sector, was as

follows:
2018 2047
£'000 £'000
Govemment 16,645 14,330
Privala snlities 27,897 27.450
44 542 41,788
Less: Provigion for allowances (1.843) {1,827)

42,688 a8, 961
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued}

{(a) Financial risk factors (continued}

{I) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk Is the risk that the Group s unable to mest ils payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities
when they fall due. Prudont liquidity risk management imglies maintaining sufficlent cash and otharliquid assets, and
maintaining the availability of funding through an adequate amount of commitied credit faciitiss,

Liguidity risk management process

The Group's liquidity management process, as camied oul within ihe Group and monitored by tha Board of Direclors,

primarily includes:

iy Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on an ongoing basls. This incorporates an assassment of expacted
cash Mows and tha availability of collaleral which could be used 1o secure funding If required;

(i} Maintaining commitled lines of credit; and

(i} Managing the concanlration and profile of debt maturilies.

Undiscounted cash flows of financial labillties
The maturity profile of financial liabilities based on conlractual undiscounted paymanls is as follows:

Within 12 1105 Over 5
Months Years years Total
$'00d $'000 5000 $°000

20138
Trade payables 20,968 - - 20,966
ther payables 10,619 5 - 10.518
Due 1o related parties 8,043 o - 8,043
Borrowings — non-relaled parties 7,123 65,379 21,321 93,823
Bomowings — related parlies 517 24 - 541
Bank Overdrafl 3,505 . - 3,505
59,673 5,403 21,221 148,397

2017
Trade payables 18,421 = - 18,421
Other payables 21,217 - - 21217
Due to related parties 7.248 . - 7,249
Bomowings — non-related parties 8,621 67,527 22,592 98,940
Bomrowings — related parties 518 3a - 556

06,226 67,565 22,502 146,383
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3. Financial Risk Management {Continued)

{a) Financial risk factors (conlinued)

(1) Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to markel risks, which is the risk that tha fair valua or fulure cash flows of a financial
instrument will fiuctuate bacause of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly arisa from changes in foreign
curency exchange rates and interest rales. Market risk is monilored by the Facey Group Limiled's lreasury
department which camies out exiensive research and monitors the price movement of financial assets on the local
and mlemalional markats. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivily analysis. There has been no change
to the Group's exposura to markst risks or the manner in which it manages and meaasures the risk.

Cumrency risk
Currency risk is the risk Lhat the fair value of future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of
changes in foreign exchange rales.

Tha Group operales intemalionally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various cumency oxXposures,
primarily with respect to the Jamaican (JA} dollar, Honduran Lempira {HML), Nicaraguan Cérdaba (MIC}, Dominican
Peso (DOP), Costa Rican Colén {CRC) and the Gualemala Quetzal {GTQY). Fureign axchange risk arses from fulure
commercial transaclions, recognisad assets and liabiities and net inveslmants in foreign opsrations.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by ensuring that the net exposurs in foreign assals and liabllities is
kepl ko an acceplabla level by monitoring currency positlons. The Group further manages this risk by maximising
foreign cumancy eamings and holding foreign cumency balances.

The Group has ceriain investmants in foreign uperalions, the nel assels of which are expased ta foreign curmency
translation risk. Currency exposura arising from thae net assels of the Group's foreign operations is managed

primarily Ihrough bomowings denominaled in 1he relavant foreign currencies.The table balow summarises lhe
Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rata risk at 31 Dacember:

uso HHL JMD NID DOFP CRC GTQ  Othert Total
50040 000 $'000 5’000 $000 5000 $000 5000 S00D
2018

Financial Assets -
Long lerm receivablas T8 g2 &0 o - 21 - 1,566
Leasea receivalles 2.514 - - - - 1.927 4.43%
Duwe rom refaled parties 5,500 - 1.153 - = = - 1,168 7611
Trade receivables 23.124 8612 1886 2486 2544 207G 1,344 2,628 42 GAA
Qther receivables 3.085 ar 10 141 a1 578 5 648 5475
Cash and cash equivalents 1,707 1168 131 266 138 70 263 742 6.570
Tolal inancial assels 37,458 10,580 3.228 Z B3 2,743 2.724 1,633 7.104 88362
Financial liabilitlas
Trada payahles 23,368 3964 111 304 110 1,528 ass 225 29966
Other payables 6,460 1,088 120 B2T 222 636 1,372 342 11,087
Dusa lo related partias 7,780 - 181 - - - - 72 B.043
Bommowings — non-refated . . N . . .

! 50,820 18,417 70,318
Borowings — related parlies 530 - - - - - - - 530
Finance Leases BE0 - . . 610 1.270
Bank Cwerdrafl - . 3,505 - 3,506
Total Rnancial liabilitics 59,726 5,062 2333 1.9 Kk 2774 1727 639 124717
Net pasition {52,270} 5328 {20,106) 1,761 2411 (=0} (543 6,482

* Includes curencles iraded at fixed exchange rate or with minimom focioation.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(a} Fimancial risk factors (continued)

(iii} Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (contimued)
usoD JMD GTG Cthar* Total
£'000 5000 $'000 §'000 §'000
2017

Financial Assels

Long term receivables a6a 86 180 232 1,386
Leass receivables 2,440 = - 1,527 3,867
Due from related parties 3,718 1.352 - 1,161 5,21
Trade receivables 22,873 1,667 5919 9,502 39,961
Other recanablas 32 115 110 1,187 1,724
Cash and cash equivalenis 7,883 174 2,189 2,051 12,097
Total financial assets 37,804 3,404 8408 15,660 65,366
Financial liabilitles

Trade payables 15,688 282 622 1,829 18421
Other payahles 15,547 598 2.262 2,838 21.217
Due fo relalad paries 7051 184 - 14 7.249
Bomowings — non-relatad paries 0.1 18,667 1.088 1.013 71.850
Bomowings — related parties 550 - - - 550
Talal fnancial iabiliies £8,967 20,732 3973 5,695 119,387
Net position T (51.003)  (17.328) 4,435 8,965

"Includes cumenchas traded at fixed exchange rate or with minimum fluctuation.
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3.

Finencial Risk Management (Continued)

[a] Financial risk factors [contnued)

(il Market risk [continued}

Currency risk (continuad)

The following tables indicate the currenciss ta which the Group had significant exposure on their monetary assels
and liabRites and forecast cash flows. The change in currency rale below reprasents management's assassment
of the possible chango in forclan exchange rales. The sensilivity analysis represents oulstanding lorgign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts thelr lranslation at the yearend for a reasonably expectsd changes in
lareign currency rates. Tha sensilivity of the profit or loss was primarly as a result of foreign exchange gains and
koesas on Iranskation of rade receivables and payables, long lerm recelvables and bomowings. There would be an
immaterial impact on other components of equity.

Effect on
% Changa in Profit
Currency Rata befora Tax
2018
2018 $'000
Currency:
HML | a
HHL +1 {7
JWD -4 103
JMD +1 {25)
NIO -4 {38)
MO +1 L4
DRP =4 147
DRP +1 {35}
CRC -4 (233)
CRC +1 55
GTC -4 111
GTQ +1 {26)
Effect on
% Change in Profit before
Currency Rate Tax
2017
2017 £°000
Currency:
JMD .l 693
JMD +1 (173)
GTQ -4 177
GTQ +1 {44)
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- 4

Financial Risk Managemeant (Continued)

{ily Cash fMow and fair value interest rate risk

As lthe Group has no significant interest-bearing assels, the Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
indepandent of changas in market interest rates.

The Group’s interast rate exposure arises from bomowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and revelving short-lem
borrowings exposs the Group to cash flow interast rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis, Varous scenarios are simulated for borrowings Lhat
reprasent the major interest-bearing positions, taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of exisling posiions and
altemalive financing.

The following lable Indicates the sensHivity lo a reasonably possible changa in inlerest rates, with all other vanablas hald
conslant, on the profit or loss. As the Group's interest rale rigk arses primarily from bomowings, the eensilivity of the profit
or loss is the effect of the assurmned changes In Interest rales based on floating rate long-lerm and revalving shor-igrm
bormowings. There is no direct impact on other components of aquity.

EHect on Effect on

Lass Profit

before Tax before Tax

2018 2M7

$'000 $'000

Change in basis points:

- 200 1,487 1,400
+100 (744} {704)

(by Capital management

(e}

Tha capital management process is camed oul by Lha parenl company. The Group's objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ahility to continue &8s & going concam in order o provida retumns for the shareholder and benefils
for other stakeholders, The Boand of Dirsclors monitors the metum on capital, which the Group defines as nel operaling
income {excluding non-recuming kems) divided by total equity {excluding non-redeemable preference shams and non-
contrafling inlerests). There was no change (o the capilal managemant process during Ihe year,

The Group has no specific capllal management stralegy and is exposed o extemnally imposed capital requirements
through debl covenants as outlined in the loan agreement with JCSD Trustee Services Limited on behalf of Bondholders.
The financial covenants include; The Current ratio, Inlerest coverage ralio and the net total debt to EBITDA ralio, Tha
Group was in compliance with the inancial covanants as at the year end.

Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value iz Iha amount for which zn asset could ba exchanged, or a iability settled, in an orderly transaclion bebween market
participants at the measuremant data.

The falr value of the Group's financial Instrumenis that, subsaquent to inftial recognition, are not measured at fair valua is
determined by wsing valuation techniques. The Group uses a varety of methods and makes assumplions thal are based
on markel condilions exisling at each slatement of financial position date. The fair values of these financial instruments
ara determined as follows:

{i) Tha face valus, less any eslimated credit sdjustmenis, for inancial asssets and lisbililies with 8 malurity of less than
ona year are aslimated lo approximata thair fair valuas. Thaesa financial asssts and lizbililies inchude cash and bank

balances. irade recelvables and payables and shor-term bomowings.

(il The camying values of non-cumrent bormowings to non-related partles approximate their fair values, as these loans are
carfed at amortised cost reflecting their contractual obligations and the interest rales are refleclive of curent market
rates for similar ransactions. The fair value of bomowings is disclosed in note 25.

(it}  The fair valuas of lha long-term recaivables and loans lo and from relalad parties could not be reliably determined as
thesa instruments wara graniad undar special lerms and are not likely to be traded in & (air markel exchanga.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{d) Offsetting of financlal asseis and liabilitles

Thers ame no offseling amangements within the group. As such financial assets and liabililies ara nol offsel and the net
amounl reporled in the statement of financial posilion

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Judgements and estimates am continually evalualed and are based on hislorical experience and other faclors, including
expeclations of future events that ara belisved lo be reasonable under Ihe circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the fulure. The resulling accounting estimales will, by definition,
sekdom equal the related aclual results. The estimates and assumplions that have a risk of causing a matenal adjustment lo
tha camying amounls of assets and liabilitics within the nexd financial year are discussad bakow.

Estimated Impalrment of goodwill

The Group test annually whelher goodwill has suffered any impainnenl, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Mote
2(N. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating unils hava hesn determined based on value-in-use caleulations, which require
the use of estimates. In determining the value in use, management has made cerain assumptions regarding revenue growth rate,
EBITDA to revenue ralios and discount rates. See Nole 16 for sengitivity of amounts to ealimates.

intangible assats

Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries have been deemed to be indefinils life intangibles. Other intangibla
aesets hava been desmed lo be finita life intangibles. Their astimated useful fves have been determined by managementl, based
on thair hest estimala of the ime pericd over which the Group will benefit from the assets acquired. Management has astimaled
thal the ueefil lives of lhe inlangibles will be between 6 and 20 years. See nole 16 for sensitivity of amounis to estimatas.

Income laxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jursdiclions. Significant judgemant is required in detemmining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. The Group recagnises liabliities for actual and anticipated lax audil issues based on estimates of
whalher addilional taxes will be due. In determining these estimates, managemant considars the meril of any sudit issues raised,
based on lheir inlerprelalion of the taxation laws, and thelr knowledge of any precadenis establishad by Iha laxation aulhorities.
Where the finsl Lax sulcoma of these matlers is different from the amounts that wera iniially recorded, such difierences could
maleriality impact the curmrent tax and defemed tax provisions in lhe perod in which such determination is made [see Nola 13).

Segment Financial infarmation

The group's Chief Execulive Officer examines the group’s performance from a geographic parspeclive and has idenlified o
raportable segments of business:

= Cantral America- Tha prncipal activitias of this par of the business is lha sale and leasing of reprographic praducts including
printing equipment, business machines and related accessories lo customers in the Cenlral America Region such as
Guatemala, El Salvador, Honduras, Cosla Rica, Nicaragua and Panama,

# Carihbsan- Tha principal aclivilies of this part of Ihe business is the sale and leasing of reprographic products ncluding
printing equipment, business machines and related accessories to cuslomaers in the Caribbean region such as Dominican
Republic, Jamaica, Barbados, Curacao and Aruba,

Managamanl primarily uses a measure of adjusted eamings bofore inlerest, tax, deprecialion and amortisation (EBITDA) to
asesss Lhe perdfonmancs of the operating segmenls. However, information about the segments’ revenue, assels and liabliilies ane
also submitted for review on @ monlhly basis.
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5. Segment Financial Information (Continued)

2018
Cantral Infersegment
America Caribbean gliminatlion Tolal
Revanua from extemal customsrs 129,248 48,495 - 177,743
Revenue from another operating segmanl 27 261 659 {26,389} 1,551
Tatal Income 156,529 49.154 [26.389) 179,284
Adjusted EBITDA 17,356 4.625 21,881
Finance costs (3,154)
Depreciation (7,753)
Amortisation (1,223)
Unallocated (1,135)
Profit balora incoma tax from conlinuing 2,610
npearations
Other profit and loss disclosures
Depreciation {5.637) {2,122) - (7,759)
Amoriisation (710} {321) {1892) {1,223}
Income lax {2.082) {394) = {2.475)
Sagmant sssals-
Tolal segment assats 142,572 44 057 {152,659} 33,970
Unallocated ilems 133,070
Tolal assets per statement of financial position 167,040
Capital expenditure 12.695 3.001 15,586
Sugment liabililias-
Tolal segment liabiilias 84,140 75,889 {118,712} 41,317
Unalincated ilams 90,094
Total liabilities per stalement of financial 131,411

position
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5 Segment Financial information {Continued)

2017
Central Intersegment
Amarica Caribbean glimination Total
Revenua from extamnal 123,589 48,258 169,048
customers
Revenue from anothar
operaling segment 25,334 938 [24,314) 1,858
143,023 47,197 (24,314} 171,906
Adjusted EBITDA 11,580 4,792 16,382
Finance costs (8,202)
Dapracialion (7,013}
Amortisation {1,455)
Unallocated gy
Loss before income Lax from (2.715)
conlinuing operations )
Other profit and loss disclosures
Depreciation (4,777) {2,238) - (¥,015)
Amuortisation {710} (553) {192} {1,455)
Income lax (1,733) {298) - (2,031)
Segment assels-
Tolal segment assats 127,989 28,630 {137.863) 28,756
Unallocated ilems 131,707
Tolal assets per statement of
financial posilion e e
Capital expendilusa 13,549 2,260 - 15,809
Segment liabilties-
Total segmenl habiilias 74,2684 68.931 {104,109} 39,085
Unallocaled ilems 82.8)
Total liabilities per statement of 121,046

financial posilion
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5. Segment Financial information {Continued)

Segment assets are measured in lhe same way as in lhe financial statemenls. These asseis are allocaled based on lhe
aperations of the segment and the physical localion of the asset.

Segmant liabilities are measured In the same way as In the financial statemenis. These liabililies are allocated based on the
opamations of the segment.

The parent entity is domiciled in Barbados. The amount of its revenue from extemal customers broken down hy location of the
customers Is shown In lable below,

2018 217

5000 $'00o
Barhados 7,275 4,597
Costa Rica 26,768 20,692
Dominican Republic 11,360 11,081
E! Salvador 20,910 22,036
Guatemala 31,166 26,784
Honduras 9,078 7.967
Micaragua 20,223 25,949
Panama 15,376 14,087
usa 15 213
Antillas 10,812 11,796
Jamalca 14,115 12,249
Other 12,376 10,433
Total 179,284 171,806

The total of capital expenditure, broken down by location of the assals is showm in lhe table below.

201E 2017

£'00D $'000
Antillas BHS 880
Barbados 103 163
Cosla Rica 2,574 2,645
El Salvadar 1.698 2,304
Guatemala 3,032 4,234
Micaragua 649 797
Panama 3,203 2,831
Other 3,252 1.873

Total 15,586 15,807
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8. Revenue

2018 2017
$'000 §'000
Telscommunicalions
Sala of goods am 1,020
Business Soluthons
Sale of goads 111,381 103,650
Sarvices 46,668 50,328
158,940 154,908
Lmase Incoma 20,354 16,208
179,294 171,908
Amarica  Coribbean "OTIRGT 2018
$'a00 $'000
Timing of Revenus Recognition
Over ime 103.016 34,887 {246,389) 111,614
Al a point in limea 39,802 7924 - 47.326
142,818 42,511 {26.3889) 158,940
7. Other Incomes
2018 2017
000 $'000
Interast incomea 549 13
Loss on disposal of propearty, plant and eguipment - (589)
Commission 138 -
Miscellanecus 710 1.261
1,397 G835
B. Expenses by Nature
Total direct, selling, administration and other operating expenses:
2018 2017
$000 000
Cost of inventories and cost related Lo services 104,226 08,660
Staff cosls (Mola B) 34,5497 33,11
Diepreciation (Nole 15) 7,799 7015
Occupancy cosls 5,262 5,072
Commission 3,632 3,454
Traval 1,874 2.450
Amorlisslion of inlangible assets (Note 16} 1,223 1,455
Telephons and communication 1,108 1,173
Transpartatian a03 1,066
Lagal and professional feas 800 1,389
Audilor's rermuneration 671 ard
Office supplies, printing and slalionery 4840 528
Impairment charge for irade and ather recelvablas 433 Ga2
Bank charges 405 758
Advertising 42 T
Repairs and mainlenance 174 276
Managemenl fees . 1,452
Other axpenses 4,741 4,868

168,733 166,404
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9. Staff Cosls

Staff costs comprise:

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes — employer's portion
Pension costs — defined contribution
Redundancy costs

CHher

10. Finance Costs

Mel forcign exchange losses
Interasi expense - Loans and finance leases

11. Taxation

2018 2017
£'000 $'000
27,712 78,951
2,703 2 804

204 244
1,937 1,112
2,041 2,220
34,697 33,43
2018 2017
£'00D $'000
1,081 1,873
B,093 7,229
9,154 8,902

Taxalion is based on profitf{loss) for the year or, in some junisdictions, the greater of a percentage of profit before tax or revenue

adjusted far taxation purposes, and compnsas:

Currant tax
Daferred tax (Mots 19)

2018 2017
$0oo $'000
2,587 2,190
(111} (158)
2,476 2,031

Tha tax on the profitiloss) bsfore tax differs from the theoretical amount that would aries using the statulory tax rate as follows:

ProfitLoss) before lax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 2.5%
Adjusted for the effects of:

Diffarent tax rales in other countries

Tax on nat assals at 19

Incume nol subject o lax

Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes
Tax in respect of pror years

Other chames and credits

Tax charge

2018 2017
§'000 $'000
2,610 (2.715)
65 (68)
1.774 952
498 192
{14) =
233 a0
86 16
[166) 629
2.476 2,031
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11. Taxation (Confinued)

2018
Before tax Tax charge Afler tax
£'000 §'000 5'000
ilems thal may be subhsequenlly reclassiled lo profit or
0585
Eurr?m:g,]r 1rans!a!ir:n_n qmrenms on tha nesl assels of (2,456) i} (2,458)
oraign subsidianes
Other comprehensive income {2,456) - {2,456)
Dafamad tax {Nola 19) =
2017
Beforetax  Tax (charge) Afier tax
5000 §'000 5000
tams that may ba subssquently reclassilrad lo profit of
loes
Currency iranslation differences on the nesl aseais of )
foreign subsidiaries {265) {265)
ftams that will ol be reclassiffed o profit or loss
Acluarial lasses — termination bencfits {166) - {188)
Othar comprehensive incomsa {431) - (431)

Defamred iax {Nola 18}

12. Investmant In othar Entities

All subsidiary undertakings are included In the consolidation. Tha propaortion of the voting rights in the subsidiary undertakings
held directly by the parent company do not differ from the proparion of ordinary sharas held.

The lolal non-controlling interest for the period was as follows:

2018 2017
£'000 $'000
Productive Business Solutions Honduras 8.A. da 85 132

c.v.

MNon-controlling interest in Cayman business machines Is iImmatarial fo the sharsholder and as such is nol disciosad.
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12. Invesimant in other Entities {Continued)

Summarised financial Infarmation on subsidiary with material nen-controlling interest

Saet out balmy is summarnsad nancial information for Productive Business Solutions Honduras 5.A. da CV, thal has non-

controlling Interests that is material lo the gmup. The amounts disclosed are before inter-company eliminations.

Summarlsed statement of financlal position

2018 2017
$'000 £'000
Current
Assels 12,199 5,348
Liabilities (12,383} {4,508)
Total net current (liabilities)assets (184} 750
MNan-currant
Assale 2364 1.077¥
MNet assets 2,180 1,827
Summarised statement of comprehansive incoma
2018 2017
§'000 000
Ravenua 8,978 7.791
Profit bafore income tax 563 732
Income lax expense {211) (232}
Met profit for the yeanTotal
comprehensive income 352 S0
Summarised cash flows
2018 2017
$'on0 $'000
Cash flows from oparating ectivitles
Mat cash provided by operaling aclivilies 1,204 234
Met cash provided byf{used in) investing aclivities 14583 (370}
Met incraasa in cash and cash egquivalents 2,787 464
Cash, cash equivalants and bank overdrafts at
. 332 il
beginning of yaar
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalenis (5) (2}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3.314 532
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13. Earnings par Share

Profit/|Loss) for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders

Numbar of shams

Total basic and diluled camings per share atiibutable o ordinary
share holders

14. Met Profit{Loss) and Accumulated Deficit

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
69 (4,878)
123,272 123,272
0.08 (3.96)

The naet profitf{less) and accumulated deficil attribulable to the shareholder of the Group are reflected in the accounts of Ihe

Company and ils subzidiarias as follows:

Met Profiti{Loss)
The Company
Subsidianes

Accumulated deflclt
The Company
Subsidianas

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
(5.604) {5,873
5,753 995

69 {4,878)
2018 2017
$'000 $'000

[14,342) (8.471)
8,312 2,038
(6,030) (5,533)
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture,
Frashold Laaseheold Fixtures, Capital
Land and Bulldings and Plant and Motor Work in
Buildings  Improvemenis Egquipmant Vehicles Progress Total
$'aoa $'000 £'000 $'aco §'00D $'000
2018
At Cost/ Valualion -
AL 1 January 52 3,035 61,087 usH 214 £5,342
Exchange 5
diffcrences - (122) (1.063) {14) (1,184)
Additions - 330 2,475 129 11 2.945
Transfers from ~ . 12,643 = - 12,843
invaniony
Disposals - (G42) {BG64) {3) (1) {1,512)
Transfers to )
awaniory - - {9,434) - {9.434)
Transfer from CWIP - 65 - - {85) -
Al 31 December 52 2 BEE 84,654 1,066 1857 68,795
Cepreciation -
AL 1 January - 1,615 42,847 789 - 45,061
Exchange differences . (67) {702) (11) - (760)
Charga for the year - 225 74568 GG - T.758
On disposats and
iransfer lo - (5) (5.068) - - {5,074}
mvanlony
Relieved on disposals - {110) {703) {5) - {B18)
Al 31 December - 1,558 43,841 839 - 46,138
Net Book Value -

Al 31 Decamber 52 1,038 21,213 227 157 22,657
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15. Property, Flant and Equipment (Continued)

Furnitura,
Freehold Leasahold Fixtures, Capital
Land end Buildings and Plant and Motor Work In
Bulldings Improvements Equipment Vehicles Progress Total
£'000 $'a00 $'a00 §'000 §'000 5000
217
At Cost -
At 1 January 4.313 2 407 50,824 874 12 66,430
Exchange differences (72) (18) 115 (2) - 25
Additions s 666 4,450 a7 210 5,422
L' ;“m ) ) 10,385 - - 10,385
Disposals (4,189) (22) {3,103) (3} (10} {7.327)
Transfars to inventory ) . (9,593) - - {9.583)
At 31 Decamber e 3035 61087 956 212 65,342
Depraciation -
At 1 January 62 1.4%6 41,745 722 - 43,855
Exchange differencas o (22) 181 {3 - 158
Charge for tha year 29 254 B,852 70 - 7.015
On disposals and
transfer to inventory 91} {43) (5,841) - - {6,075)
At 31 December o 1,615 42.647 il - 45,051
et Book Value -
At 31 Decamber 52 1420 18,440 187 212 20,20

The fumiture, fixtures, plant and equipment category for the Group includes equipment held for operating leaess by vanous
subsidiaries. Operaling lease contracls for thesa llems are entered into with third parties, with periodic leasa paymeants baing
36 to 60 months. Iterns which are leased are transferred from Inventory on commencemeant of the (ease armangements and
are lranslemad back 1o invenlory on termination of the leasa armangements.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Contlnued)

The amounis includad in proparty, plant and equipment are as lollows:

Equipmanl held for lease at cost
Accumulated deprecialion
Mal book value

The movement in equipment held for lease was as follows:

Cpening net book value

Additions - transfers from inventory during operaling lease period
Depraciation charas

Disposals — lranslers to inventory upon expiry of operaling lease
Deprecialion released

Closing net book value

2018 2017
5'000 $'000
40,905 37.668
(24,887) (24.504)
16,018 13,164
2018 2017
§'000 $'000
13,164 12,078
12,843 10,385
(5,424) (4,669)
(9.434) (9.593)
5,069 4 865
16,018 13,184




Page 38

Productive Business Solutions Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018
{Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

15. Praoparty, Pltant and Equipmant {Conlinued)

The pleces of frechold land of the Group were independently revalued as al varous dales during 2015 on the basis of open
market value or other markel comparable approaches by independant qualified valuators. The directors are of the view that there
wara no material changes in the value over the priar year for Freehold land.

The following table analyses the non-financial assets carmied al fair value, by valation mathod. The different kevels have been

defined as follows:

+ Inputs other than gquoled prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assel or Bability, or direclly (that s, a5 prices)
or indirectly (thal iz, derved from prices) {Lavel 2), and

= |nputs for the assat or liability that are not based on observable markat dala (thal is unobservable inputs) (Level 3},

Falr value measuramants at
31 December 2018 using

Significamt
other Significant
observahble unobsarvable
Inputs Inputs
{Level 2} {Laval 3]
$'000 $'000
Recurring fair value measurements
Land and puildings
Land - Surges 8t Thomas, Barbados - a2
San Salvador, El Salvador: Km.48.5 Litoral, Alami 20 3

20 32
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment {Continued)

Falr value measurements at
31 Decomber 2017 using

Significant
othar Significant
chservable unocbservable

Inputs inputs
{Level 2) {Lavsl 3)
§opo $'000
Recurming fair value measuraments
Land and bulidings
Land — Surges 51 Thamas, Barbados - a7
San Salvador, Bl Salvador: Km.49.5 Litoral, Alami 20 =
20 32

Them wera no ransfars between levels during the year.

Level 2 Fair values of land and huildings have been derved using the sales compariscn approach. Sales prices of comparable
land and buildings In close proximity are adjueled for differances in key sltibutes such as proparty size. The mosl significant
input into this valuation approach is prica per square foot. The valualion techniques for Level 3 fair values of lend and buildings

are disclosed In the lables below,

Fair valua imeasurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2017 and 2018 using significant unobsarvable Inputs

Land -
Surges St
Thomas,
Barbados Total
$'000 $'000
Cpening and Closing
balance 32 32
Ranga of
uncbservable
Falr value at inputs Relationship of
: Decambar (prabablity — unchservable
HAscTipiiog 2017 and 2018 Valuation Unobservable  welghted inputs to fair
$'000  Technique(s) inputs average) value
Land — Surges St Thomas, Eampr:g;z

Barbados a2 approach None Mone Not applicable
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16. Intangible Assetls

Franchise
Agreamant &
Goodwill Brands Contracis Licenses Taotal
$'000 $'a00 $'000 §'000 5000
2018
Year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book value 12,880 1,751 4,129 858 19,618
Exchange differences - - - {2) ()
Amuortisation (Mote 8) - (152} {710) {321) {1,223)
Closing net book amount 12,880 1,562 3,419 535 18,353
At 31 Dacember 2018
Casl 13,796 4,169 14,208 6,383 28,656
"““;'r;"pﬁ‘:g;"““‘“’“'“‘ s (816) (2,610 (10,789) (5,848)  (20,163)
Closing net bock value 12,880 1,559 3.419 535 18,383
Franchise
Agreement &
Goodwill Brands Contracts Licenses Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2017
Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book value 12 HEO 1,943 4,839 1,408 21,070
Exchange differences - = . 3 4
Amoriisalion (Nule 8) - (192) (70} (553) (1,455}
Closing net baok amount 12,860 1,751 4,129 858 19.618
At 31 December 2017
Cost 13,788 4,169 14,208 6,385 38,558
Accumulated amertisalion and
impairmant [918) (2,418) {10,079} (G.527) (18,940}
Closing nat book value 12,880 1,751 4,128 B58 19,618

Amorlisation charges have been included in the other operating expanses in the slalement of comprehensive income.
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16. Intanglible Asseis [Continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

The Group dalerminas whathar goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis or when events or changes in the circumstances
indicata that tha camying valus may ba impairad. This requires an eslimation of the recoverable amount of Lhe cash generating
unil {CGU) to which the goodwill is allocated. The recoverahle amount is usually delermined by raference lo the value in uss.
Estimating the value In use requires the Group to make an eelimate of the expsected futura cash flows from the CGU and also tn
choose an appropriate discount rate kn order to calculale the present value of thosa future cash fiows.

The allecation of goodwill lo the Group's cash generating units (CGUs) as categorised by subsidiary is as follows:

2018 2017

£'000 $000

Barbados Business Machines Limiled 403 403
PBS Canlral America, S.A. 7.539 7.530
Mobay Holdinge M. V. 4,256 4,256
Productive Business Solutions Limited {Dominican Republic) 523 523
Cither 158 158
12,880 12,680

The recoverable amount of each CGU is delermined based on value in use calculations, Thesa calkculations use pre-tax cash
Now projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year perod. Cash flows beyond tha 57 year
ara axtrapolated wsing the estimated growth rates stated below.

Key assumptions for valua in ues calculalions fur 2018 wara as follows:

Revenue
Ravanua growth rate Average Ciscount
growth rata yaar 2 EEBITDA to rate
ye=ar 1 onwards revanus 2018
Barhador Business Machinas Limilad 22.1% 2.0% 18.9% 16.8%
PBS Cenlral Amarica S.A. 3.5% 30% M.7% 21.6%
Mobay Holdings N.V. 7.8% 3.0% 14.7% 14.9%
Produclive Businass Solutions Limiled
[Dnrr.' rican RHPUhIG} 32% 2.0% 12.1% 16.8%
Kay assumplions for valua in use calculalions for 2017 were as follows:
Revanue
Revenue growth rate Average Discount
growth rata year 2 EBITDA 1o rate
ymar 1 anwards ravenus 2017
Barbados Business Machines Limilad 17.0% 3.0% 20.5% 19.6%
PBS Central America 5.A. 23.7% 15% 12.6% 15.5%
Mobay Holdings M. V. T.0% 3.0% 14.7% 14.2%

Productiva Business Solutions Limited
{Cominican Republic) 19% 3.0%, B.7% 17.8%
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16. Intangible Asseis {Continued)
Impact of possible changes in key assumplions
Barbados Business Machings Limited

2Mm38

if the budgeled revenue growth for year 7 had heen 119% lower than management's astimates for the Barbados Business
Machines Limiled CGU. lhe Group would have an excess of $1,583,000 over the carrying valua of goodwill and Iherefore no
impairment would have been recognised. If the pre-tax discount rale had been 2% highar than managemenl's estimates, tha
Group would have an excess over the canrying value of goodwill of 51,933,000 and therefora no impairment would hava baen
recognized.

2017

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had besn 10.0% lowsr lhan management's eslimates for the Barbados Busingss
Machines Limiled CGU. lhe Group would have an excess of $2,284,000 over the carrying value of goodwill and Iherefore no
impairment would have been recognised. IFthe pre-tax discouni rale had been 1% higher than managemeanl’s sstimates, the
Group would have an excess over tha carmying value of goodwill of 34,514,000 and therefore no impairment would have baan
recognisad.

PES Cenfral Amarica 5.A

2018

If the budgetad revenue growth for year 1 had been 1% lower than management's eslimales for PES Central America S.A.
CGU, the Group would have an excess over the camying value of goodwill of $1,582,000 and Iharsfore an impairmeant would
have bssn recognised. I the pre-lax discounl rale for the PBS Cenlral Amerca S.A. CGU had been 2% higher than
management's aslimales, lhe Group would hava an excess over the camying value of goodwill of 51,232,000 and therefore no
impairmeant woulkd have baen ecognised.

2097
If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had beesn 2% lower than managemenl's astimalas for PES Central America 8.A.

CGU, the Group would have an excess over the camying value of goodwill of $3,062,000. If he pre-lax discount rale for Lhe
FES Ceniral America 8.A. CBU had been 2% higher than management’s eslimales, ihe Group would have an excess ovar
the camying value of goodwill of 1,932,000 and therefore no Impalrment would have been recongnised.

Mobey Holdipgs N. V
2018

If the budgeted revenus growth for year 1 had hesn 3.0% lowsr than managemeant's eslimates for the Mabay Holdings M. V.
CGU, the Group would have an excess over iha camying valus of goodwill of $1,228,000 and therelora no impairment would
have been recognised. i the pre-tax discount rate for had been 1% highsr than managemenl’s astimatss, the Group would
have excess of 728,000 and therefore no impairment would have basn recognised.

2017

f Ihe budgeled revenua growth for year 1 had been 2.0% lower than management's eslimates for the Mobay Holdings M. V.
CGL, the Group would have an excess over lhe carmying value of goodwill of $399,000 and therefore no impaiment woukd
have been recognisad. if tha pre-tax discount rate for had bean 2% higher than managamenl’s estimates, the Group would
have an excess over tha carrying valua of goodwill of 224,000 and therelors no impairmant would have bean recognised.

=l i lions Limied (Dominican e,

2018

If the budgeled revenue growth for year 1 had been 25.0% lower than management's estimates for the Produclive Business
Solulions Limiled {Dominican Republic) CGU, the Group would have an excess over the camying value of goodwill of
$1,848 000 and theralora no impairment would have bean racognised. If lhe pre-tax discount rate for had been 2% higher than
mananement’s astimalas, the Group would have an excess over lhe camying value of goudwill of $1,380,000 and theraiore no
impairmant would have hesn recognised,
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

2017

If the budgetad revenue growlh for year 1 had been 15.0% lower than management’s eslimates for the Productive Business
Solutions Limited {Oominican Republic) CGU, lhe Group would have an excess over the camying value of goodwill of
$1,784,000 and iherefore no impairment would hava been recognisad. If the pre-tax discount rate for had been €% higher than
management's estimates, lhe Group would have an excess ovar the camying value of goodwill of $2,916,000 and therefore no

impairmant would have been recognised.

17. Lsasm Recslvablas

Gross investment in finance leases

Mot later than one year
Laler Ihan one year and not later than five years

Less: Uneamed income

MNet investment In finance leases may be classified as follows:

Mal later than one year
Later than one year and not latar than five years

18. Long Term Recsivables

Profuturn (Note a)

Maxima Industria Lilografica, S.R.L. de C.V. (Mote b)
Cesigns Factory S R.L. de C.V. (Note )

Gréfica Fénix, 8.A. de C.V. (Nota d}

Innovaciones en Papel 5. A. {Nole 8)

Ediciones AGM (Mole )

Plalinu, 5. A. {Mota g)

Impresos Graficos Sanchez (Mota h)

Xmedia Impresos {Nola i)

Argelia Melissa Ferrara [MNola j)

Digital Solucién Arte, S.R.L. de C.V. {Note k)
Eiseman Dileyda Lobo Avila / Creaciones Publicidad [Mote 1)
Serviprensa (Mota m)

Grupo Aele, 3.4., de C.V. (Note n)

Boanargas Huaza (Mole o}

Other {Nota p)

20148 2017
$7000 5000
1,425 2,448
4,313 27121
5,738 5,175
{1,297) {1,208}
4,441 3,867
2048 1,885
2,393 2082
4 441 3,967
2018 2017
£'004 $'000
4094 484
83 .
B& =
24 80
= 50
55 -
- 50
.1,5 =
47
46 -
42 =
30 -
- 28
16 27
. 26
£15 652
1,566 1,286
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18. Long Term Receivables

8) Profuiwe
Tha balance eams intarest of 5.17% per annum and is maintained as an investment fund.

b) Méaxima industnia Litografica SR1. ds C.V,
The balance eams Interest of 15% per annum and matures on March 2020,

¢} Dasigns Faclory S./.L de C.V,
Tha halance aarns intarast of 18% per annum and matures on 20 February 2020.

d} Grdflca Fanix, S.A.
The balance eams Interest of 12% per annum and matures on 20 Februany 2020.

g} Innovaci
The balanca eams interast of 11% par annum and matures on 30 April 2021. This balance has been collecied In 2018.

fI  Ediciones AGM
The balance eams interest of 15% per annum and matures on March 2020,

g) Plstin i i
The balance earns interest of 12% per annum and matures on 29 October 2019, This balance has been collectad in
201 8.

h) Impresos Graficos Sanchez (myrasa
The halance eams inlerast of 14% per annum and matures on 30 November 2020,

i} Xmedia
The balance cams inlerest of 18% per annum and matures an April 2020,
i
The balance earns inlerast of 18% per annum and matures on February 2020,

k) Digital Solucion Arta, S.R.L. de C.V.
The balance eamns interest of 18% per annum and matures on Fabruary 2020.

I} man Dl L AvitaiCreaclionas Publicidad
The balance earns interest of 18% per annum and and matures an 27 May 2020,

m) Serviprensg
Tha balance earned intarest of 14% per annum. This balance was collected in 2018.

n}  Grugo Asls, S.A. de GV,
The balance sams interast of 18% per annum and matures on April 2020,

o) Boanerges Huazo.
The balance eamed interest of 18% per annum. This balance has been collected In 2018,

p) Qther
The baknce mlales to amaounts thal ara indrddually insignificant. These balances relate to equipmenl sales with terms
batween 12 and 37 monthe. Thess are secured with promissony noles and eams interest between 12% and 21% and is
guarantesd with a pledge on the equipment financed
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19. Defarrad Incoma Taxes

{a) Deferrad income taxes are calculated in full on all lemporary differences under the liability method and comprise:

218 2017
£H0 $'000
Deoferred income tax assels 1,439 1,015
Defoerred income tax llabllities {423) {152)
Met deferred income lax asset 1,016 H'BH‘
(b} The movement on the deferred income tax assels balance for the yearis as follows:
28 207
£'0a0 £'000
Met aseet at baginning of the yaar BG3 410
Cradit to profit and loss [Nole 11) 111 158
Cradit to ather comprehensive income on sale of land and
e (2) 299
building
Exchange differance 44 {5)
Met assets at end of the year 1,018 882
{c) DOeferrad income tax assals and liabllities are atinhulabla to:
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Proparty, planl and eguipment 460 413
Provisions 363 186
Foreign exchange losses B7 210
Tax losses camied forward 46 185
Olhar 60 {141)
1,018 263
(d) The movement on lhe defered lax assel is allributable to:
2018 2017
£'900 §'00a
Property, plant and agquipment 47 1,039
Provisions 177 {50)
Foregn exchange losses {123} 210
Tax losses camed forward (149} {273)
Other 20 (473)
153 453

{8) Exceplfor propery, plant and equipment, all deferred incomsa tax ilems ara expecled to be recuvensd/ ssilled within ong
year,

(i Defemed Income tax assets are recognised for tax loss camy-forwards lo the extent ihat the realisation of the related
tax banefil through taxable profits is probable. Losses amount to §184,000, {2017: $780,000).

(g) Deferred income tax liabililies have not been esiablished for withholding tax that would be payable on unapproprialed
profits of subsidiaries as lhe amounts are permanently reinvested. Such unapproprialed profits totaled %27 256,000
{2017: 528,671,000}
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20. Related Party Transactlons and Balances

The following transaclions were carmiad out with related parties:

(a) Sale of goods and services

(b)

{c)

()

2018 2047
£'000 $'000

Sale of goods
Other related parties 8,599 1,958

Goods are 5ol based on the price lists in force and tarms that would be availabla io ihird parties. Transaclinns with
other related parties includa thosa with the ultimate parent.

Purchass of gooda and sarvices

2018 2017
$'o0a $'000
Furchasas of goods
Othar mlatad parlias 1,354 1,449

Transaclions with other related parties include thoss with Facey Telscom Inlemational.

Key management compensation
Key management Includes directors [execufive and non-sxecutive). Tha compensalion paid or paysble 1o kay
management for employee services Is shown below:

2018 M7
§'aca £'000
Salanes and other shortderm employea benalils 3,983 4459
Payroll taxes — employer's portion 616 719
Pension benefits 38 55
Olher 238 51
4876 2,284
Directors' fees Mil il
Othar transactians
2018 2017
$'000 §'000
Parent
Managament fee expenss - 1,452
Other ralated pariias —
Interast paid [711) 1
Interest income 788 -
Rental expense - 48

77 1.501
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20. Related Party Transactions and Balancas {Continued)

{e) Yearend balances arising from sales/purchases of goods

20138 2017
£'000 5000
Receivable from related parties:
Parant 1,406 3
Fallow subsilanas and sharsholdar G,205 6,228
7811 23
Payabla o related parties:
Farznt 4,207 3,249
Fellowr subsidiaries 3,836 4,000
8,043 7.249
21, Inventories
2018 01T
$'000 $oon
Finished goods 30,474 40,294
Gaods in transit 9,145 7.766
48,619 48,050
Less: Provision for obsolete stock (5,663) {5,350)
42,956 42,3'_@
Cost ofinventory recoonised as an expensa aggregating io $104,226,000 (2017: $50,660,000}), ware cognisad in profit
and loss.
22. Trade and Other Receivables
2018 27
$'000 £'000
Trade raceivables 44 542 41,7858
Less: Provision for impairment {1.843) (1.827}
42 699 39,91
Prepaid cxpenscs 2415 1,508
Other 5473 1.724
50,589 43,593
23, Cash and Cash Equivalenis
20138 2017
$000 $'000
Cash al hank and in hand 6,570 12,087
Bank cverdraft (Wote 25) {3,505) -
3,085 12,097

Tha weighted aversgs inlerest rate at the reporting dale for short tarm bank deposits was 0.75% (2017: 0.75%) par annum.
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24, Trade and Other Payables

Trade payablas
Interest Payahias
Accruad lrbilitias
Other

2018 2017
$'000 £'000
29,068 27,015
2,081 1,926
4,944 5.480
J.484 4 838
40,487 39,059

The camying amounts of trade and other payables are assumed ta ba lhe same as their fair values, due to their shart-term nalure.

25. Borrowings

{a) Bank overdrafl

Short tarm Inans —
{b) Facey Telecom Caribbaan Limited
{c} Daviviends
{d) Eppley Limilad
{#) Oparaciones de Consumo, S.A.
{f) Oparaciones de Consuma, S.A.

Current portion of non-current borrowings
Total Current Borrowings
MNon-Currant Borrowings —
{g) Finance laase
{h) JCSD Trustes Services Limiled on behall of Bondhelders
{i} Redesmable preference sharas
{i) Epplay Limitad

Currenl portion of non-curent borowings
Total nen-current bomrowings
Total borrowings

2018 2017
000 000
3,505 ’
490 490
250 250
786 -
1452

- 1,088

1,526 1,991
99 627
5,130 26518
1,270 2,066
49862 48,716
19,417 19,667
40 G0
70,580 70,509
(99) (827)
70,491 69,882
5,621 72,500




Productive Business Solutions Limited
Notes to the Consaolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Paga 49

25, Borrowings [Continued)

Total borrowings comprise:

Mon-related parlies
Relaled parties

2018 2017
$'000 5'000
74,305 71,850

1.316 550
75,6821 72,500

The exposure of the group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and tha coniractual re-pricing dates at the end of the reperling

perind are as follows:

B-12 months
1.5 years

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-currenl bomawings are as follows:

Carrying amount

2018 2017

$'000 5000
Bonds 48,863 48,716
Redeemable preference shares 19,417 19,667
Finance lsase liabililiss 1,182 1,481
Olhar 19 38
70,49 69,882

2018 2017
£'000 £000
5,130 2618

70,491 9,882

75,621 72,500

Fair valua
2018 2m7
$'000 500D
51,858 48,849
18,737 18,198
1,192 1,461

19 -
71,806 69.508

The Group has undrawn homowing facililiss by the amount of 53,505,000 (2017 nil).
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25. Borrowings (Continued)

(a)

Bank overdraft
The Group has various bank overdraft facilities which atlract interest at commaercial rales.

Short tarm loana

(b}

(e}

(d)

(s}

N

Facey Telecom Caribbean Limited
These represent unsecured loans which attract interest of 9.76% per annum and are due at call,

Davivienda
This represents an unsecured loan lo finance working capilal at a rate of 6.90% per annum and becomes dug an 15
Fetruary 2013,

Eppley Limited
This represents an unsecured U'S dollar loan eaming an interest of 11.58% per annum and becomas dus on 14 February
2019.

Operaciones da Consumo, 8.4,
This represents an unsacured US dollar eaming an inlerest of 9.38% per annumand malured on 28 February 2018.

Operaciones de Consumo, 5.4,
This represents an unsecured US dollar loan eaming an interest of 5.38% per annum and matured on 31 January 2018

Non-Currant Borrowings

{g)

(R}

i

th

Financa leasa
This represents the present value of financa leasa commilments. Finance leasas maluring within 12 months amounts lo
78,000 {2017 - $605,000),

JCSO Trustee Sarvices Limited on behalf of Bondholders

This long-term loan represents monies ralsed via a privale Bond Offerng ("Bond”). The Bond is securad by the company
and ils assels. The enlire Bond's principal matures April 2021 (5-year term), bearing inlerast fixed at 7.7% - 7.75% par
annum and to be paid quartery. Charges and guarantees over all present and future assals and property of Preductiva
Business Solutions Limiled lo secure payment of this obligathon are as follows:

& Guarantess with Productive Business Solulions Limited and its subsidiaries wilh the exception of Cayman
Business Machines (CEM) Limited and Productive Business Sclulions Honduréas.

« Charge overassets of Produclive Business Solutions Limiled and its subsidiaries with the excaplion of Productive
Business Soluticns Honduras, Productive Business Solutions Belize, Eastem Commerce 5.A. (Costa Rica).
Cayman  Business  Machines (CBM)  Limited, Produclive  Business  Solulions  Limited
{51. Lucia), Produclive Busness Solutions Canbbaan Limiled and Productive Business Solutions St Lucia.

& Chame cver ghares of all enlilies in the Productive Businese Solutions Limited sub group with restriclions for
Productive Business Sclulions Honduras, Productive Business Solutions Caribbean Limiled and Productive
Business Solutions Micaragua.

The deferred finance charges offset against the loan amounts to $2,320,000 (2017 - 53,576,000).

Tha loan sgraement with JCSD Trustes Sanices Limiled was amended on 28 March 2018 to exclude preference shares
from Ihe definition of debt for the purposes of compuling the linancisl covenanls,

Reedamable prafaranca shares

This represenls 25,600,000 Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares in Jamaica dollars entitled to a fixed praferential
cumulative cash dividend of 9.75% per annum, 10 be paid semi-annually. The maturity dale is 30™ day of June of 2024,
The deferred finance charges offset against the loan amounts to $929,000 (2017 - $1,047,000).

Epplay Limi{ad
This rapresants a loan for the acquisilion of vehicles, payahla in 36 monthly instalmanls which attracts inlerest of 11.5%
per annum,
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26. Share Capital

Authorised -
123,271,000 Ordinary shares
lasued and fully paid -

123,271,000 (2017 = 123,271,000)
Ordinary shares

2018
‘000

57,317

2017
§'000

57.317

In Juna 2017, the Company issued 54,999,000 ordinary shams 1o an affiliated company. The value of the shares issued at that
time was $1.,000, In Septembar 20117, Iha Company ssued 23,272,727 shares lo Porlland Carbbean Fund, executive and
directors and the genseral public. The value of the shares issued amounied to $12, 800,000 {$0.55 par share). The related

lransaction costs amounting lo $485.000 have been netted off with the proceads,

27. Othar Reserves

Clher resarvas primarily reprasent lhe curmancy lrenslation differences resulting from the unrealised gains and losses on the
translalion of the net assals of subsidianes thal have & different funclional currency from thal of the Company.
Clher resarves also include actuanial loss and revalualion rasarva for the revaluation of land and buildings. The actuaral loss
resulted from the application of a discount rate equivalent to that of a desp financial market for & highest qualily corporala bond in

the calculation of present value of employes benahls.

Balance as at 1 January 2017
Movement dunng 2017

Balance as at 31 December 2017
Movement during 2018

Balance as at 31 December 2018

28. Accumulated Deficit

Balance as at 1 January 2017

Actuarial losses on the lerminalion banafil
Transfer from reserves

Lcss for Lhe year

Balance as at 31 December 2017
Change in accounting policy

Frafil for the year

Balance as al 31 Dacembar 2018

Revaluation Currency
i Reserves, translation
$'000 net of taxes differences Total
5000 £'000 5000
(117 2,194 {13,703} {11,026)
117 {2.577) {2H5} (2,725}
- 217 (13,068} (13,761)
- - {2,458} (2,458}
217 {16,424) {16,207)
Total
§'oop
{2,884)
(283)
2,612
4.878)
15.537)
(566}
69

{6,030)
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29. Litigation and Contingent Liabilities
The Group Is subject to various claims, disputes and legal proceadings in the normal course of business. Provision is made
for such matters when, In the opinion of management and its professional advisors, it is probable lhat a payment will ba made
by the Group and the amount can be reasonably estimated.
Claime asserad againsl the Group, according to the principles outlined above, have not been provided for. Management is of
the opinion that the claims are ailhar without maril, can be successhully defended or will result in exposure to the Group which
is immaterial io both financial position and rasulls of cparalions.

30. Retirement Benafit Obligation

The movement in the present value of tha defined banefit obligation during the year was as follows:

2018 207
$'00o $'000
Inilial balance 579 -
Current service cost 585 92
Inlerest cost 17 22
Loss from change in financial assumplions - 166
Adjueiment - 299
Benefits paid (816] (100}
At end of year 565 579
Tha amounts recognised in amiving at praft or loss were as follows:
2018 207
$'000 $'000
Currenl service cost 5 i B
Inlerasl cost 17 22
Al end of year : 602 114
The amounts recognised in amiving other comprehensive income is as follows:
2018 2017
£'000 $'000
Re measurament loss on obligation - 166
The distibution of the obligation by country was as follows:
2D1B 2017
$'000D £'000
MNicaragua 28 102
El Salvador 467 477
565 arg

The sansilivity of the defined banefit cbligation ta changes in he weighted principal assumptions is:

2018
Impact on Retirement baneaflt obligation
Change In Increase in Decrease In
Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rala 1% {34} 24

Indlation rate 1% - -
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30, Retirement Banefit Obligation {Conlinued})

Increase

assumption
by onme year
s'oo0
Lile axpactancy g2

M7
Impact on Retirament banefil cbligation
Change In Incraase in Decreaase in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate 1% {28) 50
Inflation rate 1% g {12}

Incraasa

assumption

by one year

£000

Life expaciancy g8

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumplions constanl. In
practice, this Is unlikely to accur, and changes in soma of tha essumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensilivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projecied unit credit method at the end of the reporling period) has been applied as when
caleulating the pension liability recognised within the sialement of financial position.



Paga 54

Productive Business Solutions Limited

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018
{(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

30. Retirement Benefit Obligation (Continued)

Terminalion benefits in Bl Salvador and Micaragua are eslablished by law and entille the employee to receive a paymenl upon
lerminalion of employment. regardless of cause. In El Salvador lhe benefit is founded in iha law 582, that is the regulalory law
for Ihe economic benefit for voluntary resignation. Employees wilh more than two years of uninlerrupled service for tha
company shall receive a payment of, at least, the equivalent of 15 days of minimum wage for each year of service, In
Micaragua, ha law 185, Labour Code, entitles the employea to the right to receive a payment equivalent to ane manthly salary
for Bach year of sarvics, up lo the third year, and 20 days of salary for each additional year. Meither of these plans require the
employer to astablish a fund.

The principal actuarial assumplions used in valuing post-employment benefils ara as follows:

2018 207
FBS Nicaragua $'000 $'00D
Discount rate 10.5% 10.5%
Future salary increases 5% 5%
Retirement age 60 ymars B0 years
2018 2017
FBS Ei Salvador $'000 000
Discounl rata 4.08% 4.08%
Fulure salary increases 3.4% 3.4%
Retirement age o8 years 58 years

M. Commitmanis

Capital commilmenis
Thare are na capital expenditure contracted for at Ihe end of the reporting period but not yet incurred.

Cperating lease commlments — as lesses
The fulure mimmuom lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2018 2017

£'000 $'aoa
Mot later than 1 year 2,726 4,055
Laler than 1 yaar and not later than 5 years 12,805 12,588
Later than five years 2.951 2278
19,582 18,921

Tha group leases various properies and equipment. Leass larms ame negolialed on an individual basis and cantain a wide
range of different larms and conditions, The lease agreaments do not impose any covenanls, but leased assels may nol ba
used as sacurity for bormowing purposes. The lease amangements include tha oplion to renew the leases,
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32. Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Reconcilialion of the Group's nel prafil lo cash generated lrom operaling activilies:

Met profitiinss)
llems not affecting cash:
Depreciation
Amortisalion and impalmnent of Intangible assets
Actuarial losses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eaquipment
Taxalion expensa
Foreign exchangs (gains)y lusses
Interest income
Intarest axpensa

Change in non-cash working capital balances:
Inventories

Contracl assels

Accounls receivable

Dug from ralaled partias
Long term receivable

Lease receivable

Accounts payable

Contract liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation
Due lo ralated parlias

Taxalion paid
Met cash used in operaling aclivities
Met Debt Reconciliation

Nots 2018 2017
$'000 $'000

134 [4,746)

15 7,758 7,015
16 1,223 1,455
- 114

- 588

1 2,476 2,031
(2,357) 1213

7 (549) {(13)
10 8,093 7,229
16,779 14,887
(8,539) {12,974)

(826) .

(6,941) (6,661)

(2,001} (2,278)

(180 (483)

(474) (409)

1,273 7,824

3.670 -

{14) (100}

794 (3,378)

3,541 (3,582)

{2,818) {2,304)

722 {5,886)

Thia saclion sets oul an analysis of nat dabt and the mavemenis in nat debt for the year ended 31 December 2018,

Cash and cash equivalanis

Borrowings - repayable within cne year (including overdraft)
Borrowings - repayable afler one year

et debt

Cash and liguid investments
Gross debl - hxed inlerest rales
Met debt

2018 2017
+'00D $'000
6.570 12,097
(5,130) (2.618)
(70,491) {69,882}
(69,061) (60,403)
8570 12,087
{75,621} (72.500)
{69,051) {60,403)
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32. Cash Flows from Operating Activities {Continued)

Finance Flnanca
laases leases

dua dus Borrowing Bommowing
within 1 after1 duewithin  due after
Cash year year 1 year 1 year Total
£'000 $'000 s$'ooo §'000 §'000 §'000
Mel debl as at 21 December 2016 4,962 - - (18,190) (47,928} [(61,166)
Cash fMlows 7,128 (eas) (1,481) 18,588 {(17,001) €,847
Foreign axchanye adjusiments 9 - - - (711) (702}
Other non-cash movemeants - - - {2.411) {2,771) [5,182)
Nel debl as at 31 Decembear 2017 12,097 {805) {1,481) (2,013) (88,421} (€0,403)
Cash flows (5,523 027 269 {3.039) 16 (7.750)
Forsign exchange adjustmenls (4} - - - 389 385
Other non-cash movements - = - - {1.263) (1.263)
MNat debt as at 31 December 2018 6,570 (v8) {1.182) {9,052) (68,258} (BB,051)

33. Assets pledged as security

Wilh the exception of Productive Business Solulions Honduras S.A. de C.V., Easton Commerce 5.A. {Cosla Rica), Produclive
Businass Solulions {Balize) Ltd., Cayman Business Machines (Cayman |slands) and Productive Business Salutions Limited
(St. Luda), the assals of lhe subsidianas are pledged as security for Lhe borrowings. The pledged assets at year end lotaled
$135,130,000 {2017: $137,993,000).

34. Changes fo Accounting Palicias

The Group adopted IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments™ and IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ on 1 January
2018.

The group elecled to apply the limited exemption in IFRS 2 relaling o transition for classification and measurement and
imparment, and accordingly has not restated comparalive pericds in the year of initial application. On adoplion of IFRS 15,
the group has opled lo recognize tha cumulalive affect of milially applying this standard at the dale of inilial applicalion as
parmilled by puragraph C3.
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34, Changas to Accounting Policies (Conlinued)

To ensure compliance on adoplion of IFRS B and IFRS 15 the Group had lo update certain policies.

IFRS 9 = impact of adoption
The effect on the inilial balances as a rasult of the Implementation of IFRS 9 is shown below,
Measurement category Carrylng amount
Original New Original MNew
£'000 $'000
Currant financial assals
Due from related partias Amortized cosl  Amortized cost 6,21 5,610
Accounls recaivable Amaortized cosl  Amorlized cost 43,593 43 £48
Current portion of Isage recaivables Amortized cost  Amortized cost 1.885 1,805
Cash and deposils 12,097 12,097
Non-curmrent financial assets
Long lerm receivables Amortized cost  Amorlized cosl 1,386 1,286
Mon-Current portion of laase eceivablas Amortized cost  Amortized cost 2,082 2,082
Currant financial liabilitles
Accounts payable Amortized cost  Amortized cosl 39.638 33,638
Due to relaled partics Amortized cost  Amortized cost 7,249 7,249
Currant porlion of inance laases Amorfized cost  Amortized cosl BOS 605
Current porlion of long term lpans - related parties Amortized cost  Amortized cost 22 22
Short lerm loans - nan-relaled parties Amoriized cost  Amortized cosl 1,501 1,501
Short lerm loans - relaled parlias Amortized cost  Amoriized coslt 480 480
Non-current flnancial llabllitins
Mon-Current portion of finance leases Amoriized cost  Amorlized cosl 1,461 1,461
Mon-Curmanl portion of long term loans - non-related parties  Amortized cost  Amorized cost 68,383 68,383
Mon-Current porion of long term loans - related parlies Amorlized cost  Amortized cost 38 38
The adjustment to equity on implementalion of IFRS 9 was as follows:
$'000
Relained sarmings al 31 Decamber 2017 (5.533)
Increasa In loss allowance (566)
Retained sarnings al 1 January 2018, reslaled {6.088)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of inancial assels that arg subject to the new expected credit oss modal under IFRS 9:
- Loans receivable
- Lease receivables
Oue from related pary batancas
- Trade receivables
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24, Changes to Accounting Policles (Coniinued)

The Group ravised its impaiment methodology under IFRS 9 for each of these classes of assals. The impaci of lhe change
in impairment methodology on the Group’s retained samings is disclosed above.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject lo Ihe impaiment requirements of IFRS 9, (he identified impaiment loss
was immalerial.

IFRS 15 — impact of adoplion
Thae effecl on nancial assels and Gnancial liabililies as a resull of implementing IFRS 15 [5 shown below.

Carrylng Reclassification Re-measurement  Carrying amount

amount 31 £'000 000 1January 201
Oacambar 2017 $'000
$'000

Trade receivablas 40,399 {1,833) - 3B,566
Current contract assets = 1,883 - 1,883
Other currant inancial assels 51,809 - - §1.808
Qthar current assals 37,115 - - 37,116
Other non-cument assels 24,320 - - 24,320
Contract fiahilities - {1.787) - {1,787)
Trade and cther payahles (34,477) 1,737 - (32,740)
Provisions {4,930) - - {4,930)
Defered tax assels 40 - - a1

As part of the requirements introduced by IFRS 15 Revenue from Conlracts with Customers, the Group classifies righls and
uhligations arising from conlracts with customers whenever either party to the contracl has performed.

Total contract assals are shown i the lable balow.

%000

Contract Assets
on squipmant conlracls 5
on service contracts B21
B26

The contracl liabiliies refor to advances received from customers under the promise to deliver equipment. Totfal contract
liakilithes at the end of the year is reflected in the lable below.

Curremnt
$'000
Contract Liabililies
on equipmeant conlracts 3,407
on sarvice contracls 283

J.670
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34, Changes to Accountiing Policies {Continued)

In tha current period revenue was recognized in conneclion with contract liabililies recognized at the beginning of the year.
This ravanue was broken down as follows:

000

Revenuea recognized in contract liabilities
on aquipmeant contracis 1,200
on service contracls 287
19‘8?

The table below reflects the dollar amount of the Group's unsalisfied performance obligations for long lerm contracts with
customars. The Group has not yet recognized revenue on these unsatishied padormanca obligations, howoyvar as Iheso are
contracts in oparalion or, al least, already signed with our customers, it is expected that most of it will low be completed

during 2019.
$'000
Unsatisfied long-term conlracts
short term portion 13,861
long term portion ___ 18,504
30,365

35, Subsequent Events
On 20 Movember 2018, the Govenment of Barbados announced upcoming changes to Its regulations, which include abolishing
the Intemational Business Companies Act. The revised tax rates for fiscal years commencing 1 January 2049 are as follows:
first 8500,000 of laxable incoma is subject to tax at 5.5%, the next $9,500,000 al 3.0%, the next $10,000,000 at 2.5% and all
amounts in excess of $15,000,000 at 1.0%. The Company qualifies for grandfathering up to June 30, 2021 and awaits further
guidanca from he Govaemment of Barbados on ransitioning to the new regulalions.
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(Pursuant to Amended and Restated By-Law No. 2 of the Company)

PRODUCTIVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Company No. 34076 (“the Company”)

PROXY

The undersigned shareholder of the Company hereby appoints

of

or failing him

of

as the nominee of the undersigned to attend and act for the undersigned and on behalf of the
undersigned at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the 27th day of September
2019 and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof in the same manner, to the same extent and
with the same powers as if the undersigned was present at the said meeting or such adjournment or
adjournments thereof.

Dated this day of , 2019

Name in Print:
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